A ATLASSIAN



IT Asset and Service Configuration Management in Jira Service Management



Contents

6 Foreword

Part 1: Atlassian's approach to IT asset and service configuration management

- 8 About IT asset and service configuration management
- 8 What is IT asset management?
- 9 What is service configuration management?
- 11 Customer pain points
- 12 Real-world examples of why IT asset and service configuration practices matter
- 12 Qualys response to ProxyNotShell Microsoft Exchange Server Zero-Day Threat
- 12 New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) glitch
- 13 Why does getting this right matter for the evolution of ITIL, ITSM, ESM, and DevOps in your organization?
- 15 IT asset management
- 15 Service configuration management
- 16 Return on investment for IT asset and service configuration management
- 18 Why IT leadership values IT asset and service configuration management
- 19 The Atlassian approach

Part 2: Navigating Assets in Jira Service Management

- 24 Key terms
- 25 Object schema
- 26 Object type
- 28 Attribute
- 31 Object
- 31 Reference
- 34 Status
- 35 Role
- **37** Service registry
- **38 Assets** custom fields
- 39 **Assets** reports
- 43 Automation
- 44 **Assets** Discovery
- 45 Integrations and data imports
- 45 Jira Service Management plans and **Assets** functionality

Part 3: Good Practices for IT Asset and Service Configuration Management

52 Why use **Assets** in Jira Service Management?

- 54 How do I get started with *Assets* in Jira Service Management?
- 55 Activity 1 List objectives and measurable outcomes that support business goals and strategies
- 57 Activity 2 Develop a top-down, lean approach to design your service model architecture
- 58 Activity 3 Identify data, workflow, and roles that support key business processes
- 59 Activity 4 Outline your asset/configuration dataset
- 60 Activity 5 Develop metrics that demonstrate improvement in key business outcomes
- 62 How do I build assets using *Assets* in Jira Service Management?
- 64 Use Case Tracking a Jira request for an employee laptop
- 64 Step 1 Create an object schema for Facilities
- 66 Step 2 Create an object type and objects for Buildings
- 70 Step 3 Create Floor and Room object types
- 73 Step 4 Create Temporary Locations object type
- 74 Step 5 Create an object schema, object type, and objects for Employees
- 83 Step 6 Create an object schema and object type for Business Partners
- 87 Step 7 Create an object type and objects for Manufacturers
- 89 Step 8 Create an object types and objects for Vendors and Suppliers
- 93 Step 9 Create an object schema for IT Assets

- 96 Step 10 Create an object type for Hardware
- 104 Step 11 Create an object type for Laptops
- 105 Step 12 Configure the IT Assets object schema to import laptop data
- 116 Step 13 Create custom field to store laptop data in a request
- 123 Step 14 Associate new custom fields with a project request
- 126 Step 15 Create automation for updating a laptop
- 138 Step 16 Create a request for an employee laptop
- 141 Appendix
- 141 Checklist of next steps
- 141 Build your business case
- 142 Understand what data you need
- 142 Implement

Foreword

IT asset management and service configuration management are both critical components for excellent IT service management (ITSM). Similar to other ITSM practices (e.g., incident, problem, change, etc.), IT asset and service configuration practices are well-established and, at the same time, continuing to evolve. This juncture of traditional concepts and innovative, modern tools produces a new landscape for users to explore and develop.

This handbook will describe Atlassian's approach to IT asset and service configuration management based on ITIL 4 principles and ITSM system implementation learnings using Jira Service Management. The goal here is to guide you through IT asset and service configuration management practices and provide inspiration for applying them to different services to give more value to your organization.

You may want to think of this document as a travel guide. Read the sections that match where you currently are on your journey and skip over the parts you already know or have seen. The document will walk you through the basics of IT asset and service configuration practices, describe the structures of **Assets** in Jira Service Management, layout a solution for a common ITSM use case, and provide a high-level checklist to implement your own IT asset and service configuration strategy.

Wherever you are in your IT asset and service configuration journey, this guide should offer useful information.



Atlassian's approach to IT asset and service configuration management

About IT asset and service configuration management

Both are practices designed to help you understand what key business objects you own and how they're being used, so you can make better decisions, improve the efficiency of various processes, and ultimately, save the business money.

What is IT asset management?

IT asset management (also known as ITAM) is the process of ensuring an organization's IT assets are accounted for, deployed, maintained, upgraded, and disposed of when the time comes. Put simply, it's making sure that the valuable items, tangible and intangible, in your organization are tracked and being used.

 An asset is anything that is valuable enough to your business that you want to track it. Common IT assets include:

- Laptops
- Servers
- Phones
- Monitors
- Software
- Network equipment

The same asset management principles can apply to non-IT assets. We often see items like office equipment, buildings, vehicles, contracts, and vendors being stored as assets too.

ITIL 4 definition for IT asset - Any financially valuable component that can contribute to the delivery of an IT product or service.

What is service configuration management?

Service configuration management ensures that accurate and reliable information about the configuration of services, and the configuration items (CIs) that support them, is available when and where it is needed. This includes information on how CIs are configured and the relationships between them. This high-level view is often called a service map or service model, and forms part of the service architecture.

(ii)

Examples of IT configuration items include:

- Laptops
- Servers
- Virtual machines
- Software
- Network adapters
- Databases

Just like with assets, configuration items can expand beyond IT. Examples include employees, procedure documents, vendors, and more.

ITIL 4 definition for IT asset - Any financially valuable component that can contribute to the delivery of an IT product or service.

IT asset and service configuration management can be thought of as "combined" practices using different perspectives.

- IT asset management is about **content**, understanding what we have and making sure we keep track of our very important stuff, make good purchasing decisions, and other financial considerations.
- Service configuration management is about **context**, understanding the relationships between our very-important stuff and how it all relates together, so we can understand impact.



Customer pain points

What happens if you don't use IT asset and service configuration management?

You can avoid investing in IT asset and service configuration management and not employ the practices at all; however, you will probably pay in other ways:

- Siloed data across different systems and owners, so there is no single source of accurate data.
- Slow response time to customers because staff don't have quick access to available equipment data.
- Unexpected outages from incorrectly modifying system components, because you couldn't accurately determine which components were impacted by a change.
- Increased costs related to unused equipment and unnecessary licenses/ support.
- Manual effort (months) to determine which system components should change when requirements change.
- Failed implementations because your project's requirements changed, and you didn't communicate the changes to all parties.

IT asset and service configuration management are included as key practices used by development and operations teams because they work! These practices keep you from incurring costs preventatively and help IT stop fire fighting. Moreover, teams have learned, through practical experience, that these practices pay for themselves many times over by reducing cybersecurity risk and improving operations. Using IT asset and service configuration management allows teams to focus on innovation rather than fighting chaos.

Real-world examples of why IT asset and service configuration practices matter

Qualys response to ProxyNotShell Microsoft Exchange Server Zero-Day Threat

In September 2022, GTSC, a Vietnamese cybersecurity company, reported active attacks against Microsoft Exchange that include two critical vulnerabilities (now named "ProxyNotShell") in Microsoft Exchange Server via advisories issued by Zero-day Initiative.

The first flaw is a Server-Side Request Forgery (SSRF) vulnerability and the second flaw allows remote code execution (RCE) when PowerShell is accessible to the attacker. When successfully exploited, this combination of vulnerabilities resulted in an authenticated RCE attack.

Threat actors are chaining these two zero-day vulnerabilities to deploy Chinese Chopper web shells on vulnerable Microsoft Exchange Servers for persistence and data theft.

Because of their IT asset and service configuration management capabilities, Qualys provided its customers with the tools to identify and manage potentially vulnerable assets in their environments within hours of the threat announcement.

Qualys Response to

Link

ProxyNotShell Microsoft Exchange Server Zero-Day Threat Using Qualys Cloud Platform

New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) glitch

A software glitch prevented the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) from processing stock trades for almost 90 minutes.

The financial markets felt the impact even beyond the NYSE trading floor. Since investors couldn't calculate market indexes without NYSE data, trading also stopped at the American Stock Exchange and some futures and options markets. Trading also slowed on the NASDAQ Stock Market, due to investor reluctance to do business without information on NYSE trading.

A new software installation caused the problem. The NYSE had installed the software on 8 of its 20 trading terminals, and the system was tested the night before go-live. However, on the following morning, a total of 8 installations failed to operate correctly. The NYSE tried to switch back to its old software, but was unable to do so before the opening of the trading session. Although you might see this as a failure of the NYSE's service configuration management process, in reality, it was a success. Although the problem

didn't arise until right before the opening of trading, the NYSE had robust service configuration management processes and tools, which identified and recovered from the problem quickly. Other than some red faces at the NYSE, the damage was minimized. Had the outage continued for longer than 90 minutes, the repercussions would have been much more severe.

Link

Software Glitch Halts Trading on New York Stock Exchange

Why does getting this right matter for the evolution of ITIL, ITSM, ESM, and DevOps in your organization?

IT asset and service configuration management are established ITIL practices that help companies plan/manage IT services and deliver value to their customers. However, the ITIL and ITSM practices continue to evolve to support organizations and their digital transformation -- including DevOps which allows companies to develop and improve products at a faster pace than traditional software development and infrastructure management processes.

ITSM is simply how IT teams manage the end-to-end delivery of IT services to customers. This includes all the processes and activities to design, create, deliver, and support IT services. A team's approach to ITSM can be structured to align with ITIL practices and influenced by DevOps concepts for more efficient service delivery.

ITSM continues to evolve to meet changing business demands and now comprises flexible and user-friendly service management solutions that support both IT as well as non-IT use cases. Hence, an integrated approach to Enterprise Service Management (ESM) becomes more important than ever. ESM uses ITSM principles and capabilities in business functions to improve their performance, service, and outcomes. ESM improves visibility and access to enterprise services of all forms, accelerates service delivery and of course supports core ITSM processes, such as incident, problem, change, request, and IT asset and service configuration management. The traditional IT service catalog has evolved to focus not just on handling IT tickets, but on providing a holistic, user-centric platform for services such as resource tracking, repair handling and more. ITIL is the most widely accepted approach to ITSM. ITIL focuses on practices for aligning IT services with business needs. ITIL can help organizations adjust to ongoing digital transformation and scale. ITIL 4, the recent update to ITIL standards, represents a paradigm shift for IT teams. It guides teams to a business- and customer-value frame of reference, and encourages a more adaptable, high-velocity approach based on how your team works. The ITIL 4 Guiding Principles promote collaboration, simplicity, and feedback.

DevOps emphasizes accelerated IT service delivery enabled by updated agile and lean practices. DevOps also focuses on improved collaboration between development and IT operations teams, so organizations can build, test, and release software faster and more reliably. The promised benefits include increased trust, faster software releases, an ability to solve critical issues quickly, and better management of unplanned work.

As you can see from the diagram below, it's critical to think through how you plan, build, run and govern processes and handoffs. When ITIL, ITSM, and DevOps approaches are combined, teams expand their focus from development and delivery of new features to also include the ongoing performance of that functionality when in live operation and the customer value the capability provides.

And all these practices depend on a reliable, accurate source of asset and service configuration data to accomplish their objectives.



IT asset management

Too often, IT assets are tracked in many different places, by many different people. Naturally, chaos and inaccuracy follow, and IT teams can't make informed decisions. As IT evolves, teams become more reliant on SaaS (Software as a Service) vendors for critical services, and it's necessary to track the consumption of "on-demand services" in dynamic cloud environments. IT asset management must adapt from spreadsheets to more effective, modern practices. With increased control, visibility, and assigned responsibility, teams can reduce excess consumption, including over-provisioning and idle instances, to avoid unnecessary costs. A recent ITAM Review report indicated that computer hardware is still the top IT spending category, accounting for 30% of overall IT budgets, which is why IT asset management is crucial to master.

Service configuration management

In an era of cloud computing and anything as a service, IT teams are now managing a very different type of IT environment. While they may rely on a Configuration Management Database (CMDB), many IT organizations strugge to find value from their CMDB implementations and have even experienced failed CMDB projects. They're not alone. According to a Gartner report, 75% of CMDB initiatives fail.¹ The reason stems from starting a CMDB deployment with too wide of a scope. As a result, teams attempt to collect large amounts of information (valuable or not) upfront and struggle to maintain and keep it current. The deployment ultimately shows little value for the organization and, instead, results in lengthy projects and wasted resources.

According to Foundation ITIL 4 Edition (Axelos Limited, 2019), "It is important that the effort needed to collect and maintain configuration information is balanced with the value that the information creates. Maintaining large amounts of detailed information about every component, and its relationships to other components, can be costly, and may deliver very little value. The requirements for service configuration management must be based on an understanding of the organization's goals, and how service configuration management contributes to value creation."

Decision making requires data...effective decision making requires reliable data.

Accurate information regarding system assets and configurations improves request fulfillment, service delivery, audit processes, as well as software development and debugging. A Forrester report emphasized the benefits of

1 Gartner, Inc. "Break the CMDB Failure Cycle With a Service Asset and Configuration Management Program." Published 5 May 2020. a CMDB in providing high-quality services and support, and the economic benefits this yields for a business.

Benefits of IT asset and service configuration management include:

- Reduced risk of outages and security breaches through visibility and tracking of the changes to your systems.
- Cost reduction by having detailed knowledge of all the elements of your configuration, avoiding wasteful duplication of your technology assets.
- Improved experience for your customers and internal staff by rapidly detecting and correcting improper configurations that could negatively impact performance.
- Greater agility and faster problem resolution, enabling you to provide a higher quality of service and reduce software engineering costs.
- Efficient change management by knowing your baseline configuration, and having the visibility to design changes that avoid problems.
- Quicker restoration of service. In an outage, you'll be able to recover faster because your configuration is documented and automated.
- Better release management and clear status accounting.

Today's enterprises rely on increasingly complex technology environments, with IT assets ranging from software to purchase orders to laptops or servers. With IT asset and service configuration management software, you can better track IT assets and service configurations in your inventory, minimizing delay and human error. When a new device configuration is discovered or when an IT asset's contract is close to expiration, you can receive actionable alerts designed to provide a real-time understanding of your IT asset inventory.

Return on investment for IT asset and service configuration management

Some of the financial benefits contributing to positive ROI results found in leveraging IT asset and service configuration management include:

- IT cost reduction. Optimization of IT operations reduces costs in multiple areas, including infrastructure, outsourced services and management software.
- Service quality improvement. Ensuring that existing services are available

at any time and new/enhanced services can be released quickly.

- Risk reduction. Reduction of downtime caused by system outages, cyber attacks, security intrusions, and change and configuration activities.
- IT staff productivity increases. Optimization of IT staff activities through automation reduced IT staff time spent "keeping the lights on", freeing up valuable staff resources for business-related initiatives.

There are plenty of ROI calculations that you can apply for your business. The metric is cost avoidance in areas such as:

- The number of devices tracked and monitored by an IT asset and service configuration management system.
- The effort and cost for a system/network engineer to handle IT asset and service configuration management processes manually.
- When (not if) a system outage occurs with no backup configuration.
- A bulk configuration update to many systems, or a new required rollout.
- When your business has to comply with an IT asset or service configuration audit request, or pass a technology risk assessment.

The benefits of IT asset and service configuration management flow into all these activities. These activities take time, and time is money.



Why IT leadership values IT asset and service configuration management

Adoption of IT asset and service configuration management practices provide necessary visibility into an organization's technology landscape. IT asset management can be thought of as the "universe" of technologies, and service configuration management provides in-depth transparency into each asset therein.

These processes enable organizations to not only respond to security threats, but also run IT Operations effectively. When a cybersecurity event, like BlueKeep, occurs, the first question we ask ourselves is ... "what is impacted?". Not having a quick, definitive, concise answer spins up another unwarranted crisis - a desperate search for the "right answer". At that time, rightfully so, everyone volunteers ... causing more chaos, because everyone brings forward a different version of the "truth". At the end, when all the crises have been overcome, we reflect to realize that the price-tag - the cost of business disruption, overtime, extra work, vendor fees, etc. - is enormous and unaffordable.

Because the technology landscape is constantly evolving with adoption of new tools, our IT asset and service configuration management capabilities need to continuously improve and adapt to changing operational/business needs. And given the dependency on organizational collaboration, agile capabilities need to be supported by an effective framework to drive expected outcomes and continuous improvement.

The Atlassian approach

Atlassian's approach is to balance autonomy with alignment. We want teams to have the flexibility to run fast and operate with autonomy, while ensuring IT feels confident that work is aligned and doesn't introduce risk to the business.

Atlassian understands that every organization is different. Maybe you need to map complex dependencies across an enterprise. Or you want to keep a record of intangible assets like licenses and compliance documents to reduce risk. Or perhaps your requirements are more straightforward and involve tracking an inventory of computers.

Assets is built on the Jira Service Management platform and provides scalable IT asset and service configuration tracking functionality to meet your high-velocity team's needs. **Assets** combines asset repository and CMDB capabilities required to effectively manage asset and CI data. Whether you're looking for a lightweight asset tracker or an enterprise-grade system, **Assets** in Jira Service Management empowers you to define your assets how you like, work with them in whatever way suits you and your business best, and provide a platform for extending system monitoring and maintenance through automation.



DELIVERY Project Management Change Management reployment Management

Jira Service Management



OPERATIONS Incident Management Problem Management Configuration Management



SUPPORT Service Desk Service Request Management Service Level Management Asset Management

Confluence Team Workspace & Knowledge Management

PLATFORM Automation & Orchestration, Reporting & Analytics, and APIs Atlassian's approach allows teams to unite on one platform: Bringing delivery, operations and support into one collaborative experience. **Assets** in Jira Service Management provides IT, development, and business teams with visibility across critical business systems and enables collaboration regarding priorities and resource allocation.

With Jira Service Management on the same platform as Jira Software, all assets and related issues are stored in one place and teams can easily understand how assets relate to their workloads. You'll know the reason for acquiring the hardware, who it's assigned to, and its past history. Whether it's a trouble ticket, new hire requisition, purchase order, Jira Service Management and Jira Software enable seamless communication, visibility, and reduced friction between dev and IT teams.

Teams can:

- Better respond to service requests by gaining greater context of issues
- Minimize IT risk by understanding the downstream impact of changes
- Troubleshoot and resolve major incidents and problems faster
- Track IT resources and gain visibility into the relationships between critical applications, services, and the underlying infrastructure
- Discover and track assets which aids with planning, audits, and compliance
- Manage assets outside of IT, including in HR, sales, legal, facilities, and other functions

The best performing IT teams typically use the following practices.

EMBRACE A TEAM-CENTRIC APPROACH

Open teams work better together. Many IT teams believe they're using the "right" tools and following the "right" processes, but still fail to achieve results. In fact, these tools and processes can actually create inefficiencies, for example, between various IT Ops and Dev teams due to silos and lack of knowledge sharing. Atlassian found that establishing a culture around collaboration and transparency is the foundation to a successful IT asset and service configuration management implementation. By using the Atlassian suite, you're already one step closer to leading your organization toward open knowledge sharing. Open and collaborative culture is infused in the Atlassian toolset.

STEP BACK, AND START WHERE YOU ARE

As you define your organization's culture and practices, ITIL 4's Guiding Principles are a great place to begin. One of these principles is, "Start where you are." With 34 ITIL 4 management practices to consider, this can feel overwhelming. Instead of building from scratch, take a moment to observe and analyze the services, methodologies, people, and tools you already have. Then use these insights to identify where to start and what to continue, change, or build upon.

TAKE A TOP-DOWN APPROACH STARTING WITH THE SERVICE LAYER

When beginning an ITSM deployment, the idea of fully defining your service model down to the infrastructure can be paralyzing. Instead of diving into infrastructure and microservices out of the gate, focus on the top services most critical to your business (such as an e-commerce platform if you're a retailer). To identify these services, review tickets from the past few months to understand which services are most utilized.

ACHIEVE QUICK WINS WITH A MINIMAL VIABLE PRODUCT

For many organizations, getting employees to embrace change can be difficult. Maximize your chances for success by taking an agile approach to deploying your ITSM solution. Instead of rolling a full-blown solution at once, identify your organization's biggest pain points, and focus on the practice, service, or use case that will be most impactful. By starting with a minimal viable product (MVP) and iterating on the solution over time, you'll help your organization overcome the fear of change while satisfying a significant portion of your stakeholders.

MATCH YOUR SOFTWARE STACK TO YOUR MATURITY AND NEEDS

In their 2022 Buyer's Guide for ITSM Platforms, Gartner predicted that "I&O leaders will overspend by \$2 billion on buying unused features of ITSM platforms in 2026, up from \$1 billion in 2021." ² Instead of committing upfront to a costly ITSM platform with complex features you'll never use, take an adaptive approach to build your solution. The needs of your business are constantly changing – so buy only what you need. Atlassian's ITSM solution offers out-of-the-box ITIL practices with the flexibility to scale as you grow. And, our broad ecosystem of Marketplace apps allows you to customize and extend your capabilities, without the need for specialized consultants.

SCALE YOUR SOLUTION AND CELEBRATE SUCCESS

As you continue on your journey, communication is critical to increasing adoption. Once a service or practice is up and running, shout it from the rooftops. Offer hands-on training, pass out stickers, and incentivize usage through contests. Customers have found that after adopting Jira Service Management for IT, business teams, from HR to Legal, begin to realize the value and request service desks of their own. To manage and scale this growth, treat each request as an endeavor of shared objectives. Seek first to understand the problem each team is facing, and solve it in a consultative manner. Finally, don't forget to celebrate each milestone with your team!

2 Gartner, Inc. "A Buyer's Guide to ITSM Platforms." Published 4 August 2022.





Navigating **Assets** in Jira Service Management

Key terms

Assets in Jira Service Management is a versatile tool that records and maps the relationships and dependencies between your assets, CIs and services. **Assets** functionality clears away the unneeded boundaries between asset and service configuration management. It's a database of objects – digital representations of your assets, ranging from hardware and software to employees or various CIs. You can make your objects whatever you need them to be, and have them displayed in and be affected by issues in Jira Service Management, and even Jira Software.

Assets in Jira Service Management is comprised of a few basic entities: object schema, object types and attributes, objects and their relationships.



Object schema

An **object schema** is a collection of information used to track assets, CIs, and resources, and to understand and visualize the critical relationships between them.

Each object schema holds unique information in the form of object types, objects, attributes, icons, references, and statuses. An object schema also has its own set of permissions and automation, which allows you to hide or show different information and perform various actions for different users or groups.

Object schemas work like maps that hold all of your assets, CIs, and resources together. You can have many object schemas, and refer to objects inside them from your issues and requests.

Note: The Services object schema is a special case – it contains services that your site uses across multiple projects. The Services object schema will be covered in a later section.

PRO TIP

When creating object schemas, you should consider the following:

- Which groups will access, own, and maintain the data? For example, if the IT team updates server data and the HR team updates employee info, you should create different object schemas for these data types.
- How is the data acquired? For example, if phone data is based on a data feed from an external vendor, then the data should be tracked in a separate object schema.
- How is the data used? If object schema data is used similarly across service projects, the data should be stored in a single schema object. For example, if multiple projects reference departments, then the data should be stored in a single object schema.

Object type

An object type groups objects that use the same kind of information, conveyed through their common attributes. Rather than a single PC, your object types would be Computers, Hardware, Software, Employees, and so on. You can create as many different object types as you like, and then group your various objects within. Object types can be whatever you want them to be because **Assets** is very open and flexible.

Common object types include:

- Business services
- Hosts
- Laptops
- Software

But they don't have to be IT assets. For example, many people add other useful information, such as:

- Vendors
- Locations
- Employees
- Medical equipment

🙈 Metadata Q Locations (4) - ≝ Hardware Models (8) Operational Categories (6) - d Vendor (14) IT Assets and Configuration 🕆 😣 Configuration - 😳 IP Address (4) Software Licenses (10) Metwork Interface (3) – 📒 CPU (2) Environment (3) Network Switches (2) Routers (4) Software Operating System (4) Business Applications (12) 🗄 📁 Databases (3) DB Type (2) Hosts (4)

PRO TIP

When creating object types, you should:

- Use unique object type names within an object schema.
- Use less than 30 object types in an object schema when possible. This will simplify the screen and make maintaining the data easier.

Additionally, you can configure object types to inherit attributes from their parent object types. This is useful if you need to create multiple object types, nested in one another, and want them to keep the same structure. Each object type has its own fields, but also "inherit" the fields from its parent.

A good example for inheritance is an object type Host, with child objects Linux Host and Windows Host, which inherit common attributes, such as IP Address and Host name.

Generally, when an object type is a child or sub-type, it inherits all of the attributes of the parent type and then adds a few attributes of its own.



Additionally, you can set some object types as abstract, meaning that they can't contain any objects of their own but can pass their attributes to their children, who can themselves contain objects. Inheritance and abstract object types can be used to create object schemas that are both simple and powerful.

PRO TIP

Through simple drag-and-drop, you can organize object types into a tree hierarchy in a way that makes sense for your organization. This tree is mainly for navigation and readability.

Attribute

An **attribute** represents a specific piece of information that is attached to an object, such as a description of that object, its model number, another associated object, or a user assigned as the object's owner. Every object includes four default attributes: an attribute set as the object's label, the object's key, the date and time the object was created, and the date and time the object was last modified.

A label is the title of an object that appears wherever an object is referenced. The label of an object type is marked with the label icon in the **Attributes** view of the object type. The default label is the attribute "Name."

Attributes can hold many different types of information – text values, numerical values, or even references to other objects. The list below includes attribute types:

Default – Represents text, boolean, integer, float, date, datetime, URL, email, text area, select, IP address, etc.

Object - Enables reference to another object

User – Enables selecting a user from a Jira group and connecting objects to users

Group – Enables selecting a Jira group and connect objects with user(s) in specified Groups

Project - References a Jira Project to your objects.

Status – Defines the statuses that should be allowed, and left empty means all statuses allowed.

They can also be customized to hold very specific information, such as a postal code, a certain pattern of strings, an object of a particular type, or a mandatory value. Additional attribute configurations include:

Unique - Validate attribute values to be unique within the object type.

Cardinality - Specify a minimum and maximum number of attributes values that can be associated to the attribute. This is common when you need to set an attribute multiple choices or required / mandatory.

Validation - Validate attributes of default type "Text", "Email" & "URL" with regular expressions. This can be handy if you want to validate specific information, like an IP address, a domain name, a phone number, or anything else that may require validation.

Options - You may add multiple Options to a "Select" Type Attribute by adding them as options.

Suffix - For default type "Integer" and "Float" you can set a suffix for the attribute. Example is "\$" for an attribute "Salary"

Show sum - For default type "Integer" and "Float" you can choose to add the values and display the sum of the attribute values

Filter objects - For attribute of type "Object" you may filter objects to be selected by AQL (Assets Query Language). By using this filter it is possible to create dependencies to other fields when creating/editing objects.

Include children - For attribute of type "Object" you may include child objects in the reference

PRO TIP

If an attribute is used in many places and has the same repeated values, it may make more sense to create a separate object type. For example, you may have an attribute for Vendor in the object types for Laptop, Phone, Printer, Monitor, etc.; for each object, you will type (or import) the vendor name for that particular laptop or phone. While this method works fine, it's more efficient to have an object type called "Vendor" and set each vendor as an object for a number of reasons:

- You may want to track additional information for vendors, such as a support contact number or links to contracts. Rather than repeating this data for every laptop or phone, you can simply link to the vendor object. This also helps if you want to perform elements of vendor management within Jira Service Management.
- The Vendor will be standardized this way, meaning reports are easier to run. If you wanted to report on the number of support requests per Vendor, you can be confident you're not missing something because someone wrote Micrsoft or Aple somewhere.
- If the Vendor rebrands or needs to be changed in some way, then you only need to update it in one place.

Vendor is just one example but others include business importance levels, deployment environments, departments, and locations.

Object

Objects are your actual assets or CIs. Every object is a digital representation of anything that you're mapping, be it a specific computer, employee, office they work at, or even a license for your software. You can create as many objects as you like, and group them within object types that represent their characteristics (an employee wouldn't be the best fit for the hardware object type).

Using object actions, you can keep your physical assets in check by printing labels and QR codes, view their dependencies with other objects, and see which Jira issues they're on.

Reference

A **reference** is a connection between two different objects. Each object can be related to many other objects and dependencies defined resulting in a dynamic and powerful network of assets and CIs. References have a color and a name for better identification. This capability helps users to have meaningful graphs during impact analysis or dependency mapping, etc.

Object schema graph - see how all object types are knitted together.





Object type graph - see an object type's relations with other object types.

Object graph - see an object's relations with other objects and object types.



Because each reference is a link between an object and an attribute on another object, they are divided into two types: outbound references and inbound references.

- Outbound references point from the current object to another object (e.g., from printer asset to cubicle location)
- Inbound references point from another object towards the current object. (e.g., from stockroom to all assets stored in the location)

The direction of a reference is relative; it will change depending on which object you are examining. Additionally, each reference can have a 'Reference type', which describes the type of relationship between two objects.

PRO TIP

When defining **Assets** data structure, we recommend building meaningful sentences and setting the Object Type, Attribute and Reference Names accordingly. For example:

"The printer is located in the room" is transformed into:

Object Type: Printer

Reference Name: Located in

Attribute Name: Room

Status

A **status** is a discrete state that could apply to an object. For example, a server could have the status "Running" or "Stopped" depending on if the server is working or not.

Assets in Jira Service Management includes a set of default statuses, but you can also add new statuses to represent the different states of objects in your environment.

Statuses can be global, or they can apply only to a specific object schema. Each status includes an optional description and a general category - active, pending, or inactive.

The status category is especially useful in tracking asset/CI lifecycles and developing automation.

Configure IT Assets

General	Reference types Statuses Roles Import				
A status indicates the state of an object. You can create, update and delete different types of status for the current object schema here. Learn more about statuses.					
				Create a status	
Id	Name	Description	Category	Actions	
8	Disposed	Asset is disposed and removed from accounting records	Inactive	Delete	
9	In Stock	Asset is stored in a stockroom or maintenance room but not in use	Pending	Delete	
10	In Transit	Asset is being transported	Inactive	Delete	
11	In Use	Asset is deployed and in use	Active	Delete	
12	Missing	Asset is not found in its expected location	Inactive	Delete	
13	Ordered	Asset is ordered but not in stock	Inactive	Delete	
14	Retired	Asset is deployed but no longer in use	Inactive	Delete	

Role

A **role** is a set of permissions granted to Jira users or groups to view or modify data in **Assets**. Roles can have three levels:

Global - Allows you to configure the entire Assets application (Jira admin)

Single object schema - Allows you to configure and execute actions on the object schema level and all object types within that schema (Object Schema Manager, Developer, or User)

Single object type - Allows you to execute actions on an individual object type (Object Type Manager, Developer, or User)

Role	Description
Assets Administrator	 This role can perform all actions in <i>Assets</i> in Jira Service Management. This includes: Configuring <i>Assets</i> globally Managing individual schemas Note: <i>Assets</i> Administrator is a role given to all Jira Administrators by default. It is not possible to revoke this permission.
Assets Managers	 This role can execute the following tasks on an object schema. This includes: Configure all schema details View objects Search objects using basic and advanced search Create and edit objects Export objects Print QR codes and labels
Assets Developers	 This role means builders or creators, rather than e.g. software developers. It can execute the following tasks on an object schema: View objects Search objects using basic and advanced search Create and edit objects Export objects Print QR codes and labels
Assets Users	 This role can do the following on an object schema: View objects Search objects using basic and advanced search Export objects Print QR codes and labels

Special permissions apply to users when viewing or editing object custom fields (which we'll go over soon):

- Any user even those who are not licensed for Jira Service Management or any Atlassian products - is granted a temporary "User" role when an object custom field is added to a request type which can be accessed by end-users on a portal. This allows them to view the object fields and their values.
- Jira Software, Jira Service Management, and Jira Work Management users can have temporary "Object Schema User" roles that allow them to view and edit the contents of an object custom field within issues where they already have existing edit permissions.

These roles will not count towards the total number of users on your license.

PRO TIP

- Object type permissions take precedence over object schema permissions. For example, a user might be assigned to the User role on the schema (to not make any changes), but then have a more powerful Developer role on a specific object type, so they can create objects.
- If you want users to work with object types (and objects) you need to grant them permissions for object types, but also for the schema (at least User permissions, so they can view it). Without giving them any permissions for the schema, they won't be able to access it.
- If you don't specify permissions for object types, they will be inherited from the object schema.
Service registry

In ITSM, a service is a system, platform or infrastructure that provides value to your business or customers. Services can include things like payment platforms, servers, teams of people (for example, a legal team), websites, products, or application stacks.

In **Assets,** you map, organize, and manage your services in the Services object schema. Services behave like 'connectors' in Jira Service Management and can be applied to your entire Jira site and used across all of your service projects.

For example, let's say you set up three services in Jira Service Management: payment platform, website, and mobile app. You can set up their relationships: the website and mobile app both depend on the payment platform. Now, a change for the payment platform will include the mobile app and website as affected services.

Link

How services work with Assets in Jira Service Management



Assets custom fields

In addition to the service registry, you can create **Assets** custom fields which allow your team to access assets directly from the issue view. This is a powerful feature that can help your agents get the context they need to resolve issues or requests quickly and effectively.

Using a custom field creates a link between an issue and an object. Adding an object (i.e., as a value) to the field allows you to see all of the connected issues from the object view.



This is useful for incident management because you can use the graph to traverse through dependencies and understand where things have gone wrong. It's also useful for change management because it allows you to see the bigger picture and evaluate risk - easier to do when you can see what depends on the item you're making changes to.

Link

What is the Assets objects field? | Jira Service Management Cloud | Atlassian Support

Assets reports

You can use dynamic reports to view information about assets in **Assets** in Jira Service Management object schemas (asset-based reports) or Jira issues with asset custom fields (issue-based reports). For example, you can use asset-based reports to monitor the health of your asset/CI data and assess the accuracy and completeness of the data. Issue-based reports summarize Jira issues that include asset-related data (e.g., incidents impacting laptop assets).

Atlassian Analytics provides asset-based and issue-based reporting capabilities for **Jira Service Management Cloud** users (Enterprise only). Additional issue-based reports are available in the cloud environment through out-of-box Jira Service Management reporting or integrations with analytics tools available through Atlassian Marketplace.

The following asset-based reports are available with **Assets** in Jira Service Management Data Center/Server application. Out-of-box issue-based reporting is also available in Jira Service Management.

Report	Description	Example
Attribute value count report	Pie chart showing how the objects of an object type are distributed based on attributes.	Provide the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Count of the balance count report Image: Cou
Attribute value report	Chart showing attributes totals reported for one or more objects of a specific type.	New Attribute value report >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
Catalog report	Catalog of objects and their attributes.	With States States With States States <t< td=""></t<>
lssue count report	Line or bar chart showing historical totals of issues reported for one or more object types or objects.	Image: Series and Series

Report	Description	Example
Map report	World map showing the location of objects based on an attribute with geographical data. The objects must have a text attribute with a comma- separated latitude and longitude, for example -33.8,151.2 (Sydney).	
Object count report	Line chart showing historical totals of objects for one or more object types.	New Object count report Image: Count report Image: Count report
Payroll report	Chart showing payroll expenditures.	Creativet herein The first of the first of
Two- dimensional report	Returns a table showing the objects of an object type and their attributes.	New Two-dimensional report Image: Control transmitter

Report	Description	Example
User report	Returns a table showing the total of one or more objects assigned to one or more users.	Image: Section of the sec
Object search	Report is based on a saved quick search (filter) from the Assets Object Search View. It's a table showing the objects of an object type and their attributes. When you open an object search report, you can select the Quick search link to view the filter that generates the table.	Image: Section of the section of th

If you use **Assets** in Jira Service Management and include all of its data in an **Atlassian Data Lake** connection (along with Atlassian Analytics), you can utilize the starter dashboard that comes with that Data Lake connection; see the link for details: Link

Starter dashboards for asset and configuration management | Atlassian Analytics

Automation

You can drive efficiency with automated actions that follow conditional rules. Rules allow you to automate actions within your system based on criteria that you set. Automation rules are made up of three parts:

- Triggers that kick off the rule
- Conditions that refine the rule
- Actions that perform tasks in your site

You can create automation rules that automatically perform actions (for example, notify users) based on specific events (for example, object updated) for all objects, or only a group of objects in a schema. When an asset meets certain criteria, you can update an asset, create issues, send email notifications and execute a script or an HTTP request.

The following Jira automation components are available for **Assets**:

- Create issue (If the rule is triggered by an object, you can select Insert object to automatically add the triggered object via AQL)
- Edit field attributes
- Edit object
- Lookup objects

Rules can be tailored to your needs using the Asset Query Language (AQL). Use post functions to trigger automatic actions that follow Jira workflows. For instance, automatically assign the issue to a service owner upon confirmation. Leverage powerful automation tools to further slash down resolution time and boost operational efficiency.

For more information, visit the following links: Use Assets Query Language (AQL) | Jira Service Management doud | Atlassian Support Jira Software Automation: Basics | Atlassian

Jira automation actions | Cloud automation Cloud | Atlassian Support

Assets Discovery

Assets Discovery is a network scanning tool that can be used with or without an agent. It detects hardware and software that is connected to your local network, and extracts detailed information about each asset. This data can then be imported into **Assets** to help you manage all of the devices and CIs within your local network. You can choose which assets, and which attributes, you pull into your object schemas and you can create your own scanning patterns to find more specific details. If you run it on a schedule it will pick up changes to keep data updated. With automation rules you can even trigger Jira issues, email notifications, and more based on detected changes!

Assets Discovery is free of charge and includes three separate tools:

- **Assets** Discovery is an agent-less scanner to help you discover devices and CIs in your local network.
- Assets Discovery Agent is an agent-based scanner that can help you discover data from systems that are not always online, or collect

For more information visit the following link:

What is *Assets* Discovery? | Jira Service Management Cloud | Atlassian Support

data from Windows systems without opening the inbound WMI Port and the Dynamic DCOM Ports.

• **Assets** Discovery Collector is a tool that allows you to run multiple instances of Discovery in parallel, or to run a scan remotely and transfer the resulting data to a different location.

Integrations and data imports

Ensure your Jira Service Management system can scale with a single source of truth that always provides an accurate, real-time picture of your infrastructure.

- Leverage a wide range of free integrations to sync with industry-leading cloud services, asset managers, and other CMDB tools and applications
- Complete data imports in a variety of formats.

Integrations and import functions allow you to connect all the dots and work with up-to-date information that grows with your business. **Assets** provides a solution to federate an array of data repositories and link together all the data about an IT resource.

Assets has several built-in importers that let you import your data from CSV, database, JSON, LDAP, and so on. You'll use these importers by creating an import configuration, specifying its details, and then mapping the data you're importing to object types and attributes. Such an import configuration can be then synced on a regular basis, so your assets stay up to date.

For more information visit the following link:

What are imports? | Jira Service Management Cloud | Atlassian Support

Additionally, **Assets** integrate with industry-leading tools such as AWS, Google Cloud, Azure, Jamf, and SCCM. You can also migrate from and connect with third-party applications like ServiceNow, Device42, Snow, and NVD.

While Jira Service Management has all these tools, it's not recommend you bring in every bit of data you have into **Assets** unless you plan to depreciate the tool. Bring in what you need to use in Jira Service Management, you can always bring in more later.

Jira Service Management plans and *Assets* functionality

Assets in Jira Service Management is built on the Jira Service Management platform, so teams can quickly and easily tie assets/CIs to service requests, incidents, problems, changes, and workloads.

Unlike legacy CMDB applications, *Assets*' flexible and open data structure allows teams to manage any kind of asset that's important to support their ITSM practices. HR, sales, marketing, legal, facilities, and other functions can also use *Assets* to track and manage their assets and resources.

Assets in Jira Service Management is a Premium and Enterprise only feature. It is compatible only with company-managed projects.

Feature	Assets in Jira Service Management Data Center (v 4.15 and later) Assets - Jira Service Management Data Center/Server app	<i>Assets</i> in Jira Service Management Cloud Premium or Enterprise
Objects and object modeling		
Object schemas Use object schemas to organize the structure of your object types, objects, and attributes.	•	Ø
Object schema templates Create an object schema from a template that contains a pre-created object types and objects.	•	
Object types Use object types to specify assets/CIs by defining attributes and references between other object types.	Ø	•
Objects A specific instance of an object type. E.g. 'Laptop' would be an object type and 'MacBook-4523' would be an object.	•	
Number of objects	Unlimited Subject to the performance parameters you set for your Jira Service Management environment.	1 million
Attributes Use attributes to manage what kind of information is stored for each object type.	•	•
References Use references to define how objects are related to one another.	•	•

User Roles Use roles to manage object schema permissions for different users and groups.	~	~
Data, Importing, & Exporting		
Assets Custom Field Select objects from fields in Jira issues.	Via Assets custom fields	Via Assets custom fields
Imports - CSV Bring data into Assets from CSV and JSON files.	Normalization for duplicate entries.	Normalization for duplicate entries.
Imports - JSON CSV Bring data into Assets from CSV and JSON files.	Normalization for duplicate entries.	Normalization for duplicate entries.
Imports – Databases, LDAP, and Jira Users		
Bring data into Assets from external databases, Active Directory, or from the Jira environment itself.		This is a priority area for future development cycles.
Asset Discovery Network scanner that can be used to discover IP-enabled assets/CIs and bring them into Jira Service Management.	♥	<

 Integrations Integrate with a third party tools to keep data up to date. Includes: Cloud providers (AWS, Azure, Google Cloud) Mobile device and software management (JAMF, SCCM, Snow) Other CMDBs (ServiceNow, Device42) Atlassian ecosystem (Jira & Bitbucket, Confluence, Tempo) Others (NVD) 		This is a priority area for future development cycles.
Export objects Export data from Assets as a backup or to be used in other systems. Reporting, viewing, and searching	•	٢
Object graph Use the object graph to view the relationship and hierarchy between different objects and object types.	©	•
AQL search Use AQL (Assets Query language) to search Assets for specific objects (e.g. what computers are not assigned to a user). Note: this was previously IQL (Insight Query Language) and will continue to function following the rebrand to Assets .	⊘	

JQL search Use the Assets JQL function to search for Jira issues that have objects linked to them.	0	
Bulk edit objects Make changes to a large number of objects at once.	Ø	~
Reports View your Assets information in myriad different ways.	Ø	Via Atlassian Analytics (Enterprise only) Via integration with analytics tool available from Atlassian Marketplace
Widgets Use an Assets widget to view Assets information within a Jira Dashboard or on a Confluence page.	0	
Print QR Codes Generate printable QR codes for each object in Assets .	•	
Label templates Generate printable, customizable label templates for each object in Assets.	•	

Automation		
Workflow Transitions Automate Assets related tasks when a particular transition in a workflow is triggered.	Uses Assets specific post-functions.	Uses Jira Automations rather than post-functions. Similar functionality to Data Center.
Object Automations Create rules that automate simple tasks in Assets . Rules are automatically triggered upon certain events.	Uses Assets specific automations.	Uses Jira Automations rather than Assets specific automations. Similar functionality to Data Center.
Extending Assets functionality		
Scripting Ability to extend automation actions with Groovy scripting	Uses Assets specific automations.	Can use Jira Automations or ScriptRunner instead
REST API	O	•





Good Practices for IT Asset and Service Configuration Management

Why use Assets in Jira Service Management?

Digital transformation of businesses, a top tech initiative, changes how we look at management of IT assets-including information and lifecycle-from on-premises hardware and software to SaaS apps and services in the cloud. Technology management as a whole requires clear visibility into the entire IT landscape, and that all starts with offloading the baggage of historically troublesome terminology, like CMDB - a term that often conjures feelings of inaccuracy and untrustworthiness. As Gartner previously documented, only 25 percent of organizations derive value from their current CMDB investment. ³

However, CMDBs can provide valuable insights and enable IT to make better decisions more quickly for service delivery. Recent Forrester research indicated that:

"A CMDB is an integrated operational data store that contains key IT/digital assets, inventories, and their dependencies. It can play an essential role in enabling impact analysis and managing IT portfolios for risk, efficiency, and performance. In our survey, 67% of respondents said their organization has a CMDB; of those, 91% agreed that their CMDB is essential to their operations."

Forrester further hypothesizes that:

"... organizations investing in this capability have a better understanding of their digital estate, leading to higher performance on multiple dimensions. Notably, high-performing organizations overcome the data quality and completeness concerns that have plagued CMDBs and led to their failure; respondents in these groups are also more likely to report that they have automated their CMDB data maintenance as much as possible." ⁴

The key to successful technology management in the current era is aligning key objectives and shedding legacy perceptions of what CMDB means for IT inventory and assets. So how can an organization reassess its current and future landscape? By looking at what's needed – providing the right data to the right stakeholders at the right time.

Assets in Jira Service Management provides a modern-world database for asset and service configuration management that is extensible throughout the business environment.

³ Gartner, Inc. "Break the CMDB Failure Cycle With a Service Asset and Configuration Management Program." Published 5 May 2020.

⁴ Forrester Research, Inc. "The State of Service Management, 2022." Published 22 July 2022.

When saying "modern" world, it means a technology landscape that is agile, hybrid, and changing – based on emerging DevOps practices, provided by SaaS products, and hosted on a combination of mobile and on-premise devices and cloud platforms.

Assets was built with this complex, transforming landscape in mind and has a few advantages over other vendors' offerings:

Tool Structure - By standardizing on a single tool across both asset and service configuration management, users benefit from tighter process integration and gain richer information context through shared data elements. Customers can also realize cost savings through faster implementation and simpler maintenance of a single tool.



IT Asset Management

CMDB Service Configuration Management

Flexibility - The open data structure provides customers with more control over their assets and CI types. Customers can track asset and CI data required to support key business processes which reduces implementation time and maintenance effort.



Accuracy - No-code/low-code automation keeps data updated and reduces the manual workflow significantly.



Centralization - A wide range of integrations so customers can use a single entry point to their data. The source copy of the data is stored elsewhere.
 (Note: Due to the number of integrations available, this currently applies more to Jira Service Management Data Center thanCloud.)

Reputation - With Jira Software's reputation with software developers, we have an opportunity to improve the reputation of CMDBs from a "barrier" to an "enabler" within the DevOps world.

How do I get started with **Assets** in Jira Service Management?

Assets in Jira Service Management' tool structure allows teams to adopt an adaptable and scalable strategy for building their IT asset and service configuration management system.

Use the ITIL 4 Guiding Principles to observe and understand the services, practices, people, and tools that you already have.

Consider the following ITIL 4 principles:

- Start where you are
- Focus on value
- Progress iteratively with feedback
- Keep it simple and practical
- Optimize and automate
- Collaborate and promote visibility
- Think and work holistically

While no one likes "homework", it is required for a successful asset and service configuration management implementation. Most customers conduct a series of workshops to outline the company's key business initiatives and establish clear goals for their asset and service configuration implementation. The following sections include activities for successfully implementing **Assets**.

Activity 1 - List objectives and measurable outcomes that support business goals and strategies

Start by identifying a team and constructing a playbook. The team should include members of various groups – development, IT operations, and business (legal, finance, etc.) – to ensure that the organization's goals are articulated and priorities are defined.

The team's playbook should outline the business value of IT asset and service configuration management using the following items:

- Stakeholders (Who)
- Scope of the work (What)
- Approach, constraints, assumptions (How)
- Expected business outcomes (Why)
- Success measurements (Evaluate)

For example:

Who

- Service desk
- DevOps
- SecOps
- Enterprise architecture

What

Implement a system to manage IT assets and service configurations

How

- Provides support for cloud computing and a cloud-driven demand model
- Provides improved data availability to IT Information Security
- Enhances change collision detection / proactive change management impact analysis
- Provides additional data for incident management, problem management and event management
- Facilitates improved collaboration and cooperation across the organization
- Provides data to support contracts with external service providers

Why

- Improve overall system availability
- Be better positioned to support audits / regulatory requirements
- Contribute to a cohesive strategy across IT organizations
- Provide a Single Source of Truth describing how the IT infrastructure supports the business
- Provide better insight to IT operational environments

Evaluated by

- Improved visibility of planned and unplanned changes as a percentage of total changes
- Increased successful change rate
- Decreased incident mean-time-to-repair
- Improved perception of IT as an enabler of the business

Activity 2 - Develop a top-down, lean approach to design your service model architecture

Here are some common questions a company might ask to give some inspiration of where to start and what info to include in the team's playbook. Which questions come up most for you? Which answers take the longest to find out? What answers cost your organization the most if you don't have them?

IT asset management Service configuration management • What type of IT devices are important What are the top services that are for us to track and manage? important to our business? • What do we need to understand • Who manages these services? about our IT devices to track them • What percentage of services are effectively? deployed to the cloud (AWS, Azure, What do we need to track when Google etc.)? onboarding and offboarding employees • Do we have a good understanding of and contractors? the service taxonomy (the supporting • What types of software licenses do we service applications/ infrastructure and track (cloud vs physical)? Do we have a their relationships)? good understanding of the subscription · What types of information do we license purchased versus assigned? need to track to support compliance • How can leadership and IT teams find requirements? the total assets deployed, who owns or is assigned the assets, where is the asset's associated purchase order and contract data, etc. to make key

If you can't easily answer these questions, then you likely have blindspots in your asset and service configuration oversight. If you have unused licenses, maybe you're paying too much for your software agreement. If you're not

sure which operating systems you have running, how do you make sure every device is updated if there's a security patch required?

It is recommended to keep your approach simple and practical by focusing on your most critical services and systems. These are easy to spot – if there is even a hint of a disruption, your service desk is flooded with calls and senior management starts sending nervous messages to their staff. List out central problems and questions for these capabilities in the team's playbook.

business decisions?

requirements?

• What types of information do we need to track to support financial audit

This information will determine what data you need to answer your questions, help solve your problems, and are the foundation for your initial use cases to be included in the team's playbook. Identify your critical service and the supporting infrastructure; specifically, the applications and the related servers. You can then prioritize developing these use cases based on the value the functionality will bring to the business and ease of implementation. You'll get a quicker and more visual realization of the available benefits, and the rest of the business will quickly notice the positives such as quicker incident resolution, less failed changes, and less downtime.

Activity 3 - Identify data, workflow, and roles that support key business processes

After your initial use cases are defined, the next action is to consider what data asset and service configuration management must provide to other processes – incident, change, request fulfillment, etc.

For example, what data is needed to repair an employee's laptop?

- Asset tag
- Model
- PO
- Assigned user
- Location

This data will be the attributes for your assets/CIs. Include only the attributes you need to support the data needs of the use cases and determine the source for the information. Some customers may have configuration data available through current discovery tools and other asset data tracked in various spreadsheets or databases across separate organizations. Use your existing data as the baseline for **Assets** implementation and document which attributes require manual entry and which ones can be updated automatically via discovery.

Also, outline the workflows and roles between processes so that everyone knows how they should be working with each other and who owns the data completeness and accuracy.

For example, incidents can be created only for servers that are connected to the company network and operational. The data center team is responsible

for receiving the server and updating asset data; the server support team installs the server and a discovery tool detects the new server and sets the configuration status to operational.

Activity 4 - Outline your asset/configuration dataset

In most cases, companies typically start with tracking infrastructure assets they need to support incident and change management, as well as, service requests. These items typically represent IT components such as:

- Servers and virtual machines
- Applications
- Laptops/desktops
- Printers
- Network equipment
- Storage arrays
- Databases
- Security appliances
- Microservices

Decide which asset types and attributes you need to support your use cases. Again, it is recommended that organizations start simple and make incremental improvements as they gain experience.

PRO TIP

- Start by populating Assets with a solid inventory of assets and CIs focused on specific use cases. If you find yourself populating with items that do not tie back to your goal or use case, you are off track.
- Assets/CIs should have unique identifiers that do not change. The identifier needs to be unique so it can be differentiated from other assets/CIs, and it mustn't change so the asset/CI can be tracked over time. Establish a consistent naming convention to improve usability of asset data. Serial number, asset tag, asset name or external system identifier can be used depending on the asset type.
- Assets/CIs should have relationships. An infrastructure asset/CI represents a component that needs to be managed to deliver or support a service. In other words, each infrastructure asset/CI has a direct or indirect relationship with one or more service CIs.

Activity 5 - Develop metrics that demonstrate improvement in key business outcomes

You can show value to the organization by tying back to the goals and objectives the team set earlier. The value to the company is that you can provide a link between strategic business drivers to the services offered to your customers to the operational infrastructure used to deliver your services and the associated total cost of your services.

For example, *Assets* can help your IT organization track:

- Improved mean time to identification (MTTI) and mean time to resolution (MTTR) for incidents by using CI dependency information
- Reduced device misconfigurations which can contribute to system downtime and cyberattack vulnerability
- Increased service availability and change deployment success through more visibility of system relationships and improved risk assessments

- Improved asset utilization and budgeting accuracy with a single source of asset lifecycle data and the associated costs
- Faster system isolation and remediation after security incident with accurate infrastructure dependency data
- Increase regulatory compliance through streamlined IT asset and CI tracking procedures and improved data quality and reporting

These metrics provide a more data-driven approach to new software and hardware investment for the organization.

How do I build assets using **Assets** in Jira Service Management?

Assets is included in Jira Service Management Premium, Enterprise, and Data Center plans, allowing teams to track their assets, CIs, and resources to gain visibility into critical relationships between services, infrastructure, and other key assets. **Assets** is built on Jira Service Management, giving teams a simple and quick way to tie assets and CIs to service requests, incidents, problems, changes, and other issues to gain valuable context and the ability to automate workflow to boost operational efficiency.

To start your free trial of Jira Service Management Cloud Premium, get in touch with your local Atlassian Solution Partner.

Access Assets in Jira Service Management

Whether you are on a licensed or trial version of Jira Service Management Premium or Enterprise, you can access **Assets** in Jira Service Management by clicking on the **Assets** option in the Jira Service Management main navigation bar

🏭 👉 Jira	I Service Manage	ement	Your work ~	Projects ~	Filters ~	Dashboards ~	People ~	Assets	Apps ~	Create
Your	work									
Recent	projects									
	SM sample space vice management		ITSM proje Service manag	ct gement						
REC	CENT QUEUES		RECENT QUE	UES						
All	open tickets	0	All open ticket	ls	0					
All	my tickets	0	All my tickets		0					
3 q	ueues -		3 queues -							
Worked o	on Viewed Assign	ed to me	Starred				_			
							Lo	ad new ac	tivity	

PRO TIP

If you are new to Jira Service Management, it is recommended you create a project using the IT service management template. In a new instance, this template creates 2 projects:

- ITSM sample space to test, explore, and learn how ITSM projects work by creating new requests, adding custom fields, and assigning them to people – or play around with the sample requests already created for you.
- ITSM project to handle service requests, resolve incidents, approve changes and fix problems.

Whether you use a default project or create a new project, note the project's Key data because we will use the information later when creating a custom field.

III 4 Jiro	a Service Management	Your work V Projects Filters RECENT ITSM samp Service proje	Dashboards People A	ssets Apps ∨ Create
+	Q All Jira	a products ITSM project Service proje	ct (IP) ct	Туре
	ITSM project	View all projects		Service management
	ITSM sample space	Create project	-	Service management
III 💠 Jira	Service Management	Your work v Projects v Filters	 Dashboards < People < A 	ssets Apps v Create
Projec	cts			
	Q All Jira	products v		
*	Name *		Key :	Туре
	ITSM project		IP	Service management
	ITSM sample space		ITSAMPLE	Service management

Use Case - Tracking a Jira request for an employee laptop

Managing laptops is a common use case for every organization. This will provide a step-by-step guide for tracking laptop requests in Jira Service Management for explaining the features and capabilities of **Assets** better.

Step 1 - Create an object schema for Facilities

Facility data will be included in employee records, so a Facilities object schema must be created first, so information can be referenced by the Employees object schema created next. Floors and rooms will be tracked as nested object types with the information displayed in a flexible tree hierarchy.

If your organization does not need to track multiple buildings or facility data, skip to Step 5.

III 🔶 Jira Service Management Your work 🗸	Projects × Filters × Dashboards × People × Assets Apps ×	Create Q. Search
	Asset and configuration management	Configuration
	Connect, track and manage the assets that matter to your team - applicatio and much more. Learn more about Assets	n services, infrastructure, hardware, people,
	Q Search all schemas for objects	
	Object schemas	+ Recent objects
	ts Services (SVC) 1 ob	No recent objects to show

Note: There is a default, read-only object schema named 'Services'; this object schema is system generated and tracks Services created in Jira Service

Management. The Services object	
schema will be covered further in a	Create object schema
later section.	Name *
Click the "+" to display the Create	Facilities
object schema window, enter	Max. 50 characters.
object scheme information and	Key *
object schema mormation, and	FAC
create the record	Max. 10 characters.
Configure the new object schema	Description
	A place to store facilities and various information about them
and select Allow others to select	
objects from this schema because	Max. 80 characters.
the facility data should be	Create Cancel
reference-able by other objects.	

Asset a	nd configurat	tion manage	ment		🗘 Conf	iguration
Connect, tra and much m	ck and manage the a ore. Learn more abo	assets that matter to ut Assets	o your team - application	n services, int	frastructure, hardware	e, people,
Q Search	all schemas for obj	ects				
Object sche	mas			+	Recent objects	
දී Facilit	ies (FAC)		0 obje	ects	No recent objects to	show
ਖਿ Servic	es (SVC)		Config	guration		
∳ Jira Service Manager	nent Your work - Projects - Fil	ters v Dashboards v People v II	nsight Apps - Create		Q, Search	* 0 0
B Facilities	s and various information about them	-			Search objects	Graph Object schema
Search object types Q	* # * 0		Empty Object Schema No object types are created yet, create s away.	ome right		+ Create
	Back to Facilities view Configure Facilities General Reference types S	tatuses Roles Import				
	You can edit the name and des	cription of your object schema h	ere, as well as enable configuration opt	ions. Learn more abou	it managing object schemas.	
	Name	Facilities				
	Description	A place to store facilities an	nd various information about them			
	Key	FAC				
	Number of object types	0				
	Number of objects	0				
	Created	18/Oct/22 1:20 PM				
	General configurati	on				
	Enable quick creation of re	ferenced objects				
	Validate objects attributes	in quick object creation				
	Allow others to select obje	cts from this schema				

PRO TIP

Enable quick creation of referenced objects and Validate objects attributes in quick object creation are set by default.

When you are creating a new object, you can enter details about that object in the 'Create Object' dialog box. These details could include text or numerical information, or even references to other objects. If you Enable quick creation of referenced objects you can both create and reference an object in one action, simply by entering a new label into any object reference field on the 'Create Object' dialog box.

Because these newly created objects may have mandatory fields or validations in place, you can select Validate object attributes in quick object creation to enforce any requirements, and block the creation of new objects.

Step 2 - Create an object type and objects for Buildings

Click the **+** icon or the **Create** link to display the **Create Object Type** window, enter the object type information, and create the record

Facilities A place to store facilities and	d various information about them	Search objects	v Overv	dew Graph	Object schema *
Search object types Q	«				
	8		_		
	*	Empty Object Schema			
	0	No object types are created yet, areate some right			
	Create object type	away.			

Name		
Buildings		
Max. 50 characters.		
Icon		
II Building	~	
Parent		
O None	*	
Description		
A place to store building	information	

PRO TIP

Add new icons as you wish and use for object types. This way you can have your own organization's colors/theme and improve readability of asset data.

Facilities	f various informatio	on about them		Search objects	• Overview	Graph	Object schema ¥
Search object types Q	« 11 » *	Buildings A place to store building information		Create object	Objects Attribute	Graph	Object type v
	0		No objects have been created (yet). Be the first to create an object for this object type.				

Select the **Attributes** option for **Buildings** object type and add options important to your organization:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Street Address	Default	Text	
City	Default	Text	
State/Province	Default	Text	
Country	Default	Text	
Postal Code	Default	Text	

sarch object types Q	×	B	uilding	gs		Creat	e object Objects	Attributes Graph Object ty
Buildings	88	A 1	place to	store building information				
		Id		Name	Description	Туре	Type Value	Additional Value
	0	18		Key		Default	Text	1
	0	19	٩	Building Name	The name of the building	Default	Text	Ø
	Ŭ	20		Created		Default	DateTime	
		21		Updated		Default	DateTime	
		36		Street Address	Building street address	Default	Text	0
		37		City	City where building is located	Default	Text	0
		38		State/Province	State/Provenice where building is loc ated	Default	Text	0
		39		Country	Country where building is located	Default	Text	0
		40		Postal Code	Postal code for the building	Default	Text	0

For the **Name** attribute, update the name data to "Building Name", click the cog icon and configure the **Name** attribute to be unique, so you avoid duplicate building names



PRO TIP

You can easily reorder attributes by selecting the grid icon and dragging the item to a different location.

arch object types Q	*	Buil	dings		Creat	e object Objects	Attributes Graph Object typ
Buildings	8	A plac	ce to store building information				
	**	Id	Name	Description	Туре	Type Value	Additional Value
	0	18	Key		Default	Text	
	0	19	Building Name	The name of the building	Default	Text	0
	Ŭ	20	Created		Default	DateTime	
		21	Updated		Default	DateTime	
		36	Street Address	Building street address	Default	Text	0
		37	City	City where building is located	Default	Text	0
		38	State/Province	State/Provenice where building is loc ated	Default	Text	0
		39	Country	Country where building is located	Default	Text	0
		40	Postal Code	Postal code for the building	Default	Taxt	0

Click the Create object button to display the Create Object window

Search object types Q	æ		Buildin	ngs		4	create o	object Objects	Attributes Graph	Object typ
Buildings	8	-	A place t	o store building info		_				
	**		ld	Name	Description	Type		Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	11	18	Key		Default		Text		
	0	1.1	19	 Name 	The name of the object	Default		Text		0
	Ŭ	1.1	20	Created		Default		DateTime		
			21	Updated		Default		DateTime		
			22	Street Address	Building street address	Default		Text		¢
		1.1	23	City	City where building is located	Default		Text		0
			24	State/Province	State/Province where building is locat ed	Default		Text		¢
		1.1	25	Country	Country where building is located	Default		Text		¢
			26	Postal Code	Postal code for the building location	Default		Text		٥
						Default	~	Text	•	Add

Add building data, select **Create another** to create multiple records using the same window, and create the record

Create Object		
Object Type*	Avatar	
II Buildings	Choose a file	
Building Name		
Austin office		
The name of the building		
Street Address		
303 Colorado St		
Building street address		
City		
Austin		
City where building is located		
State/Province		
ТХ		
State/Provence where building is located		
Country		
United States		
Country where building is located		
Postal Code		
78701		
Postal code for building location		
	_	
	Create another Create	Cancel

You can also use the **Clone** feature to create records

earch object types Q		Buildings							Create object Objects	Attributes Or	aph Obje	ct type
Buildings (4)	8	A place to store buil	ding intermation									
Fleers	*	Filter Search + Q, A	Idvanced							25	· 0	
Temporary Locations	0	1-4 of 4 5										Colum
	0											
		T Key*	Building Name %	Created 23/Oct/22 11:10 PM	23/Det/22 11:10 PM	Street Address No Value	City No Value	State/Province No Value	No Value	Pestal Cod No Value	5e	
		E FAC-85	Austin office	20/Oct/22 5:48 PM	20/Oct/22 5:48 PM	303 Colorado St	Austin	TX	United States	78701		
		I FAC-84	San Francisco office	20/0et/22 5:44 PM	20/Oct/22 5:44 PM	350 Bush Street	San Francisco	CA	United States	94104 @	New in Gra	ah.
		# FAC-83	E Boston office	18/0ct/22 10:03 PM	20/0ct/22 5:42 PM	239 Causeway Street	Boston	MA	United States	02114		
		1-4 of 4 5									Cione	

Add your primary building data; additional building records can be created when needed.

Step 3 - Create Floor and Room object types

Some companies may need to track facility data at a specific level (e.g., data center stockroom, laboratory room, etc.), so create a hierarchical data structure to support this requirement. To create a hierarchical data structure, create object types with parent object types and include the parent as an attribute.

Create an object type for **Floors** and select **Buildings** as the **Parent**.

rch object types Q			Buildings	1				Create object	Objects Attributes (Draph Object
uildings (3)	5	-	A place to ste	ore building info						O Configure
	1		ы	Harrie	Deser	lytion	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	+) Copy
	0		725	Key			Default	Text		O Delete
			726 9	Building Name	The s	ame of the building	Default	Text		
	-		727	Created			Default	DateTime		+ Create
			728	Updated			Default	DateTime		
			729	Street Address	Build	ng street address	Default	Text		0
			730	City	City a	where building is located	Default	Text.		0
			731	State/Province	State	Province where building is located	Default	Text		0
			732	Country	Court	try where building is located	Default	Text		0
			733	Postal Code	Posta	I code for the building location	Default	Text		0

Create Object Type	
Name	
Floors	
Max. 50 characters.	
Icon	
II Building	~
Parent	
II Buildings	~
Description	
A place to store floor informat	ion for a building
Max. 70 characters.	
	Create another Create Cance

Select the **Attributes** option for **Floors** object type and add the following item:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Building Name	Object	Buildings	Part of

For the **Name** attribute, update the name data to "Floor Name", click the **cog** icon and configure the **Name** attribute to be unique, so you avoid duplicate floor names

ch object types CL		Floors	e fine information by a building				Create ob	ect Disjects Attributes Gra	ph Object ty
Aldings (4) Fibors	1	ы	Name	Description	Trat		Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	41	Key Floor Name	The name of the building floor	Default		lext.		0
	°	43 44	Created		Default		DateFime DateFime		
		222	Building Name	Name of associated building	Chiect	*	E Buildings v	Part of Upd	ate Cancel
					Default		Text v	Part of (New Reference)	

For the **Building Name** attribute, you use an existing value or enter a new reference value; simply click on the item to enter the value. If you enter a new reference value, the data is automatically added to the **Facilities** object schema **Reference types** where you can add more information and update the color.

Configure Facilities			
General Reference types Statuses Reles Im	port		
References connect two different objects. You can o	reate, update, and delete different types of references for the current object schema here. Learn more about references.		
			Create a reference
Nave	Sesciption	Culer	Actions
Part of			Delete

Create an object type for **Rooms** and select **Floors** as the **Parent**.

Deeme		
Rooms		
Max. 50 characters.		
Icon		
II Building	~	
Parent		
H Floors	~	
Description		
A place to store room info	ormation for a floor	
May 70 characters		
Max. 70 characters.		

Select the **Attributes** option for **Rooms** object type and add the following item:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Floor Name	Object	Floors	Part of

A place to stare tackines i	and vanious in	iovation (about them								
earch object types Q			Rooms				Create object	Objects	Attributes	Graph	Object type
Duildings (4)	8	-	A place to stu	ore room information for a floor							
Floors	*		ы	Name	Description	туре	Type Value		Additional Value		
	0		223	Key		Detault	Text				
	0		224	Room Name	The name of the room	Detault	Text				0
			226	Created		Default	DateTime				
			226	Updated		Detault	DateTime				
				Floor Name	Name of associated floor	Object	Floors		Part of	~	Add

For the **Name** attribute, update the name data to "Room Name", click the **cog** icon and configure the Name attribute to be unique, so you avoid duplicate room names

Click the **Graph** option to display the object types and their relationships. As you can see in the relationship arrows, **Rooms** are part of **Floors**, and **Floors** are part of **Buildings**.


Step 4 - Create Temporary Locations object type

Some companies set up temporary operations in parking lots or partner facilities for special events. This data can be simply added as an object type along with any needed information.

Name*		
Temporary Locations		
Max. 50 characters.		
con*		
🣁 Cardboard Box	~	
Parent		
O None	· • •	
Description		
A place to store temporary	location information	
Vax 70 characters		

Search object types Q,	1	1	emporary place to store	y Locations e temporary location information			Create object	t Objects Attributes Graph	Object type -
+ II Floars - II Rooms - Temporary Locations	*	16	8	Name Key	Description	Type Default	Type Value Text	Additional Value	
	•	76 77 77	0 1	Temporary Location Name Created Updated	The name of the temporary location	Default Default Default	Text DateTime DateTime		٥
		77	2	Description	Description of temporary location	Default	Text		0
						Default	Text v		Add

Step 5 - Create an object schema, object type, and objects for Employees

Asset and configuration mana	gement	🗘 Configurati
Connect, track and manage the assets that matt and much more. Learn more about Assets	ter to your team - application services, infra	structure, hardware, peop
O Search all schemas for objects		
Object schemas	Ŧ	Recent objects
Object schemas	+	Recent objects
Dbject schemas	3 objects ····	Recent objects

Display the **Create Object Schema** window, enter object schema information, then configure the object schema to select *Allow others to select objects from this schema*.

Name *					
Employees					
Max. 50 characters.					
Key *					
EM					
Max. 10 characters.					
Description					
A place to store emplo	oyees and vario	ous informatio	n about then	n	

Configure Employee	s
General Reference types Sta	atuses Roles Import
You can edit the name and descr	iption of your object schema here, as well as enable configuration options. Learn more about managing object schemas.
Id	15
Name	Employees
Description	A place to store employees and various information about them
Key	EM
Number of object types	0
Number of objects	0
Created	20/Oct/22 12:00 PM
General configuratio	n
Enable quick creation of refe	arenced objects
Validate objects attributes in	quick object creation
Allow others to select object	ts from this schema

Create an object type for Employees.

Name		
Employees		
Max. 50 characters.		
lcon		
1 User	~	
Parent		
♦ None	~	
Description		
Description		
A place to store employe	ee information	
A place to store employe	ee information	/

Select the **Attributes** option for **Employees** object type and add options important to your organization:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Atlassian Account ID	User		
Department	Default	Select	HR IT Finance Marketing Operations R&D
Manager Name	Object	Employees	Reports to
Job Role	Default	Text	
Email	Default	Email	
Location	Object	Buildings	Reference Skip this attribute if your organization does not need to track multiple buildings
Employment Type	Default	Select	Full-time Employee Contractor
Start Date	Employee start date	Date	
Status	Status		

For the **Name** attribute, update the name data to "Employee Name," click the cog icon, and configure the Name attribute to be unique, so you avoid duplicate employee names.

Search object types Q		Employ	ees			Cre	ata object Objects Atbibutes	Graph Object type
1 Employees		A place to	store employee information					
	-	м	Natio	Description	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	94	Kay		Default	Text		
	0	95	Name	The name of the employee	Default	Text		0
		96	Created		Default	OutsTme		
		97	Updated		Default	DatxTime		
		93	Atlassian Account ID	Atlassian Account ID of the employee	Usar			0
		214	Department	Employee's department	Default	Select		0
		0.0	Manager Name	Employee's manager	Olijesi	L'Engliques	Reports to	0
		100	Job Role	Employee's job-rule	Default	Text		0
		101	Emal	Employee's email	Default	thal		0
		102	Location	Employee's work location	Object	E Buildings	Reference	0
		103	Employment Type	Eu8-time employee, contractor, etc.	Default	Select		0
		213	Diart Cale	Employee start data	Default	Date		0
		212	Diabus	Batus of employee	Distor			0
					Defe d	The second se		

Configure the **Department** attribute and add options important to your organization:

- Finance
- HR
- IT
- Marketing
- Operations
- R&D

For the **Manager Name** attribute, use an existing reference value or enter a new reference value by clicking on the item and entering the new value.

ect types Q	*	2	Employees Autors to stars employee internation				Create object: Objects Actributes Gr	aph Object
	1		M Name	Departuries	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	
	0		34 Key		Default	Telet.		
			95 Same	The name of the amployee	Default	Text		0
			H Created		Default	DataTime		
			97 Updated		Detault	DateTime		
			36 Atlassian Account ID	Atlansian Account ID of the employee	Uter			4
			214 Department	Employue's department	Default	Select		4
			99 Manager Name	Employee's manager	Object	2 Employees	Reports to v Up	data Care
			100 Job Rale	Employee's job role	Default	lext	Reports to (New Referen	4
			101 Email	Employee's erhall	Detaut	tmat		<
			102 Location	Employee's work location	Object	E Buildings	Deference	4
			10.2 Employment Type	Put-time employee, contractor, etc.	Default.	Select		
			213 Start Cale	Employee start data	Default	Date		
			and Barris	Status of employees				

Configure the Employment Type attribute and add relevant options:

- Full-time Employee
- Contractor

Configure: Employment Type

Gen	eral Options Cardinality	
		Add
411 411 411 411	Full-time Employee	×
	Contractor	×



PRO TIP

Do not enter a **Type Value** for the **Status** field so that all values are allowed. Additional functionality will be developed for the **Employees** object type and you will want the flexibility to add more status values.

Click the **Create Object** button to display the **Create Object** window.

Create Object				
Object Type*			Avatar	
2 Employees	~			Choose at
lame				
Jennifer Fish				
The name of the employee				
Atlancian Account ID				
Jennifer Fish	~			
Atlassian Account ID of the employee				
Marketing	~			
Employee's department	-			
employee's department				
Manager Name				
Blythe Smithson	~			
mployee's manager				
Job Role				
Content Specialist				
Employee's job role				
Email				
jfish@atlassian.com				
Employee's email				
ocation				
Remote Workspace	~			
mployee's work location				
Employment Type				
Contractor	~			
Full-time employee, contractor, etc.				
Start Date				
07/25/2022		Clear		
Employee start date				
Status				
Active	~			

In the **Atlassian Account ID** attribute, type a few characters of the employee's ID, and a list of Jira accounts is provided; click on the appropriate item to enter the value.

Showing 1 users

In the **Manager** attribute, type in the manager's name and a list of matching objects with matching names is provided. An existing reference object can be selected or a new reference object can be created by clicking on the item and entering the value. Be sure to update the new object with additional data, if needed.



Add your primary team member data; additional employee objects can be created when needed.

Employees												Search objects	x Overs	rear Graph	Object schema +
Search alderst types Q	1	2 Employees	love internation									Create obje	t Objects Att	ributes Graph	Chiect type +
	- 2	ORDER BY 'HENSIN	Account ID* ASC					O Q, Basic						25 . v	0- =-
	0	1-8 of 8 5													Columna -
	۰	T Key	Name %	Crusted	Updated	Atlansian Account 10 *	Department	Manager Name	Job Role	Enall	Location	Employment Type	Start Date	Status	
		1 EM-19	1 Janeiller Eich	26/04/02 9/48 AM	07/Nov(22 514 PM	 Janeiller Eich 	Marketing	2 Bythe Smithean	Content Specialist	Foh@atlascian.com	Ellameta Workspace	Contractor	26(3.4/22	active.	0
		1 04.16	1 Bythe Smitheer	25/0-02 9:46 AM	07/Nov(22 514 PM	Aith Mail, an	Marketing	Mo Value	Product Warkering Senior Team Lead	bowitharon@artansian.cr	ESan Francisco office	Full-time Employee	24(3,477	10.010	0
		\$ EM-20	1 Jenerry Coolman	25(0x)(22 9:68 8M	07/Nov(22 5.54 PM	Ain Mailue	Marketing	1 Bythe Smithaan	Product Warkerling Visinager	joselman@atlessian.com	ESan Francisco office	Full-time Employee	18,Fab/35	arrow	0
		1.20125													

Select an **Employee** object and display the object record; the display contains the defined attributes, references, update history, comments, and printable QR code.

Blythe Smithson									Saarth shjacta
₱ Edit □ Convert Nor	ne - Chiject Graph 1 Dack	to Object Type							Create object
- Details							- Dates		
Name .			1 Bythe Brith	Nan -			Creded	25/00/22 9:46 AM	
Department			Marketing				Located	07/Nor/22 5:54 PM	
Job Role			Product Marketi	ing Service Team Level			Start Date	24(34(17	
Enal			bunithsowBatta	usian.com			Internet Before and		
Legation			E San Francisco	office			Indiana		
Employment Type			Full-time Emplo	une .			· Attachments		
Sterus			8(19)						
« Activity Comments History						*	There are no attachments		Attach Files
Grand	Tarr	Actor	Antibute	Otherstee	New value		· Connected Jira issues		
07/Nov/22 0 14 PM	Added Value	🕘 Janathar Faik	Department		Martating		Filer Quresilved	Day'	
06/NO1(22 128 PM	Added Value	B Jannifer Fish	Status		Active				
06,Nov(12 1 28 PM	Added Value	😸 Jacober Eak	Shart Cate		23639643				
25/0+/52 0-48 AM	Advied Valve	😸 Januar Park	Employment Type		Pullities Englique				
25/00/22 9/48 AM	Added Reference	Janniter Fast	Location		San Francisco effice				
25/00/02 0 /8 Mil	Added Value	😸 Januar Fak	Erral		trewithcondyattacsian.com				
25/0c/(22 8-48 AM	Added Value	😸 Jacober Pak	Jub Role		Product Marketing Senior Team Level				
25/0et/22 8-46 AM	Created	B Janufar Fak							
Comment									

Click the **Object Graph** option to display the object and relationships.



View Object Graph

PRO TIP

You can quickly update, export, delete, and print QR codes for assets through the bulk actions function. Query for the objects you want to modify, then click on the cog icon to display the bulk action options.

Employees	various	information about them							Search objects	0 Overs	New Graph Obj	lect schema ~
Search object types Q	e b	Employees A place to store employe	e information						Create obj	et Objects Att	ributes Graph	Object type ~
	. 0 0	1-3 of 3 5 7 Key 2 KM-90	Employee Name %	Updated 02/Nox22 9:08 PM	Atlassian Account ID	Manager Name No Volue	Job Rale Product Marketing	Evail bsmithson@atlassian.co	Location	Employment Type Full-time Employee	BLALK ACTIONS (3) Edit objects Export objects	Columns -
		1 EM-93 1 EM-93	Jenniller Fish Jenniller Fish Jenniller Coolman	02/Nov(22 9-08 PM 02/Nov(22 9:08 PM	Janniler Fish No Value	1 Blythe Smithson 1 Blythe Smithson	Senior Team Lead Content Specialist Product Marketing Manager	if sh@etiassian.com jcoolman@atlassian.com	office Remote Workspace	Contractor Full-time Employee	III Print QR Codes Delate	0
		1-3 of 3 S										

Bulk edit (3)

Кеер	*	Name				
			The name of the employee			
leep	*	Atlassian Account ID		~		
			Atlassian Account ID of the em	ployee		
leep	~	Manager Name		~		
			Employee's manager			
Кеер	~	Job Role				
			Employee's job role			
Кеер	~	Email				
			Employee's email			
leep	~	Location		~		
			Employee's work location			
кеер	~	Employment Type		~		
			Full-time employee, contractor,	etc.		
Кеер	~	Start Date	mm/dd/yyyy		Clear	
Keen			Employee start date			
Change		Status	Active	~		
Add			Status of employee			

Step 6 - Create an object schema and object type for Business Partners

Manufacturer data will be included in IT asset records, so a **Business Partners** object schema must first be created, so information can be referenced by the **IT Assets** object schema created next. Object types will also be created for vendors and suppliers which can be used in future cases for tracking vendor and supplier information.

If your organization does not need to manage business partners at this level, skip to Step 9; the functionality can be added and data updated when needed.

Asset ar	nd configuration manage	ement	Configuration
Connect, trad	ck and manage the assets that matter ore. Learn more about Assets	to your team - application services,	infrastructure, hardware, people
Q Search	all schemas for objects		
Object sche	mas	E	Recent objects
	(2.1)		Blythe Smithson
E Emplo	yees (EM)	3 objects •••	Austin office
ំង Faciliti	ies (FAC)	4 objects •••	Remote Workspace
			II Jennifer Fish
诰 Servic	es (SVC)	1 object 🔒	Jeremy Coolman
			View more

Display the **Create Object Schema** window, enter object schema information, then configure the object schema to select *Allow others to select objects from this schema*.

Name *				
Business Partners				
Max. 50 characters.				
Key *				
BP				
Max. 10 characters.				
Description				
A place to store business partr	ers and vario	us information al	bout them	
Max, 80 characters				

Configure Business Partners

General Reference types Statu	ses Roles Import
You can edit the name and descript	ion of your object schema here, as well as enable configuration options. Learn more about managing object schemas.
Id	5
Name	Business Partners
Description	A place to store business partners and various information about them
Key	BP
Number of object types	0
Number of objects	0
Created	24/Oct/22 11:40 AM

General configuration

- Enable quick creation of referenced objects
- Validate objects attributes in quick object creation
- Allow others to select objects from this schema

Create an object type for **Business Partners** and configure the object type with *Pass all attributes to child object types* and *Set this object as abstract*

create object type		
Name*		
Employees		
Max. 50 characters.		
lcon [*]		
🙎 User	~	
Parent		
O None	~	
Description		
A place to store employee	e information	
		1
Max. 70 characters.		

Configure Business Partners

General	Roles	Inheritance	
Inheritan	ce allow:	you to automatically pass attributes from parent object types to child object types. Learn more about inheritance.	

- Pass all attributes to child object types. Learn more about inheritance.
- Set this object as abstract. Learn more about abstract object types.

PRO TIP

Create a parent object type when you have similar data sets with different sources and/or uses. Using a parent object type, you can create multiple child object types and maintain the same structure. As you add or update attributes in the parent object type, the attributes will also be added / updated to the child object types.

Note that all attributes will be copied from the parent object type and cannot be modified.

Select the **Attributes** option for **Business Partners** object type and add relevant options:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Business Name	Default	Text	
Account Manager	Default	Text	
Technical Account Manager	Default	Text	
Customer Success Manager	Default	Text	
Customer Support Contact	Default	Text	
Account Information	Default	Textarea	

A Subsets Partners A	iearch object types Q		Busine	ess Partners			Create object	t Objects Attributes Graph Object type
No. Description Type Type Total Additional Total 0 0 Norm Description Onflath Ref. Onflath Onflath Ref. Onflath Onflath Onflath Ref. Onflath Ref. Onflath Onflath Ref. Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath Onflath <td< td=""><td>Business Partners</td><td>8</td><td>A place t</td><td>to store business partner information</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	Business Partners	8	A place t	to store business partner information				
0 0 For Nor Default Index 0 0 Vanier Tae name of the sitient Outloat Tool Toool Tool Toool <tdt< td=""><td></td><td>10</td><td>14</td><td>Name</td><td>Description</td><td>Тура</td><td>Type Value</td><td>Additional Value</td></tdt<>		10	14	Name	Description	Тура	Type Value	Additional Value
P 64 Name The name of the abject Defuil Tent Optimit Tent Optimit Tent Optimit		0	67	Key		Default	Text	
69 Create Data DataTrance 70 Update7 DataTrance Origit 70 Balanes BuilesSuffame DataTrance 70 Mater DataTrance Origit 70 Mater DataTrance Origit 70 Mater DataTrance Origit 70 Mater DataTrance Origit 71 Attrance Manager DataTrance Origit 72 Torinot Manager DataTrance Origit 73 Cuttome Locess Manager Cuttome Locess Manager DataT 73 Cuttome Experimentaria Origit Text Origit 73 Cuttome Experimentaria Cuttome Locess Manager Origit Text 73 Cuttome Experimentaria Origit Text Origit 74 Konto Manager Cuttome Locess Manager Origit Texters			68	 Name 	The name of the object	Default	Text	0
P2 Updated Default Datafest P3 Updated Default Default Text O P4 Baliness Name Oversil allersen namager Default Text O O P3 Renort Masager Default Default Text O O P3 Continer Success namager Default Text O			69	Created		Default	DateTime	
Pio Buildess Name Buildess Name Default Text Of Pio Actionar Managar Oversital destions managar Outual Total Total Outual Total Total <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>70</td><td>Updated</td><td></td><td>Default</td><td>DateTime</td><td></td></td<>			70	Updated		Default	DateTime	
71 Activue Manager Oversil account manager Dafault Text Oversil account manager 72 Technical Account manager Default Text Oversil account manager 73 Cutimer Euccess manager Default Text Oversil account manager 73 Cutimer Euccess manager Default Text Oversile 74 Account Internation Central Opfault Textres			76	Business Name	Business full name	Default	Text	0
72 Technical Account Manager Default Test O 73 Cuttomer Excess: Manager Default Ext O 79 Cuttomer Excess: Manager Default Ext O 79 Cuttomer Excess: Manager Default Ext O 74 Account Excess: Manager Default Ext O			21	Account Manager	Overall account manager	Default	Text	0
73 Cutomer Excess Manager Cutomer Excess Manager Defait fet O 77 Excloser Supple Centeric Cutomer sugged centeric Optight fet O 78 Accounter Supple Centeric Cutomer sugged centeric Optight fet O			72	Technical Account Manager	Technical account manager	Default	Text	0
77 Continuer Deport Contact Continuer suggest contact Default Text O 74 Account Information Contenies account Information Default Texters O			73	Customer Success Manager	Customer success manager	Default	Text	0
74 Account Information General account information Durbuilt Textures 💠			77	Customer Support Contact	Customer support contact	Default	Text	0
			74	Account Information	General account information	Default	Textarea	0

For the **Name** attribute, click the **cog** icon and configure the **Name** attribute to be unique, so you avoid duplicate object names.

Step 7 - Create an object type and objects for Manufacturers

Create an object type for **Manufacturers** and select **Business Partners** as the **Parent**.

	N	lame					
		Manu	ufacturers				
	M	lax. 50	0 characters.				
	In	* no.					
		H F	actory	~			
		_					
	P	arent					
		🖬 B	Business Partners	~			
	0	ocori	ation				
		Asla	puon				
		л ріа	ce to store manuf	acturer information			
							//
	M	lax. 70) characters.				~
	M	lax. 70) characters.				~
	M	1ax. 70) characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	
	M	1ax. 70) characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	
	M	lax. 70) characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	
isiness Partn	M	1ax. 70) characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	Desivery Oracle Object schema v
isiness Partin er to start budiess st types o	Mers artistication of the	fax. 70) characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	OwnWare Graph Object schema v est Methodes Graph Object pre -
siness Partn or to thre budress ctopes <u>G</u>	Mers	fax. 70	o characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	Otenview Craph Object schema v ents Matchine Graph Object type v
siness Partn or is site: business ct types <u>a</u>	Mers arters and ve	nies internation Busin Busin Appendix Source	o characters.	Create a	nother	Create Cancel	Deeview Cosph Object scheme v exter Anticides Origin Object type v Additional Yobie
siness Partn er er ster kolmen et types G. Partnerk	Mers	Hax. 70	o characters.	Create a	another	Create Cancel	Oseph Object schema v Aldeblank Oseph Object tother v Additional Yoular
siness Partu er är stor halfers ; it types Partnert	Mers	lax. 70	o characters.	Create a	Type Type Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat	Create Cancel	Comolous Graph Object schema v Additional Value Additional Value O
siness Partn er suter budiets a tryess c _k Patriets	Mers	Max. 70	o characters.	Create a	Type Default Default Default Default Default	Create Cancel	Convolues Graph Object schema - eta Jabouria Graph Object schema - Mattional tracia O O O O O O O O O O O O O
Isiness Partn In the sum buildens of types Partners	Mers	Busin Busin	Particular Aster Aster Aster Aster Particular	Create C	Type Defent Defent Defent Defent Defent Defent Defent	Create Cancel	Controller Denoview Graph Object Lohema - International Graph Object type - Additional type O O O O O O O O O O O O O
Isiness Partu er tre ter ber balans st types Q. Partneri	Mers	Alax. 70	And these related these relate	Create a	Type Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat	Create Cancel	Countries Couph Object schema v Additional Volue Additional Volue Countries Countrie
isiness Partn ar ör stor halves stoppes Q. Partneri	Mers	Max. 70	e adaud Reir estadud Reir ess Partnes Tesses Farriers Tesses Farriers Tesses Farriers Controls Cyanaries Builens Name Account Manager Custome Eucons Manager Custome Eucons Manager Custome Eucons Manager	Create a Create	Type View Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat Defeat	Create Cancel	Comologia Graph Object schema v Additional Value Additional Value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

There is no need to add or modify any attributes because the data was copied from the parent object type.

Click the **Create object** button to display the **Create Object** window.

Create Object		
Object Type		Avatar
Manufacturers	×	Choose a file
Name		
Atlassian		
The name of the object		
Business Name		
Atlassian Corporation		
Business full name		
Account Manager		
Amanda Hallson		
Overali account manager		
Technical Account Manager		
Scott Florian		
Technical account manager		
Customer Success Manager		
Tomasz Wojtasik		
Customer success manager		
Customer Support Contact		
Lilian Chu		
Customer support contact		
Account Information		
Atlassian support site https://support.atlassian.com/		

Create another Create Cancel

Add your primary asset manufacturer data; additional manufacturer objects can be created when needed.

Search object types Q		Manufacturers			Create o	Agent Objects Attributes Graph Object type ~
 Business Partners Manufacturers (5) 		A place to store manufacts	uer information			
		Filter Search + Q. Advance	ed .			25 × O × 10 ×
	0	Name *	Business Partners / / Manufacturers / BP-15			
	•	Apple -	Atlassian			12
		Atlassian	- Details		U Dates	
		AWS	Name %	Atassian	Created	25/0cl/22 8 56 AM
		***	Business Name	Atlassian Corporation	Updated	25/0ct/22 9:45 AM
		Lenovo	Account Manager	Amanda Hallson	Inductional Data	united and a second s
			Technical Account Manager	Scott Florian	No relevanced obi	activ found
		Microsoft	Customer Success Manager	Tomasz Wistasik	+ Attachments	
			Customer Support Contact	Lillan Chu		
		6	Account Information	Atlassian support site https://support.atlassian.com/		

Step 8 - Create an object types and objects for Vendors and Suppliers

Create an object type for **Vendors** and select **Business Partners** as the **Parent**.

Name [*]			
Vendors			
Max. 50 characters.			
lcon*			
🔂 Cottage	*		
Parent			
💼 Business Partners	*		
Description			
A place to store vendor information			
May 70 charactere			
INIA. 7 U UNBI BUCCIO.			
	Create another	Create	Cancel

Create Object Type

Create an object type for **Suppliers** and select **Business Partners** as the **Parent**.

Create Object Type			
Name			
Suppliers			
Max. 50 characters.			
lcon			
🚏 Shop	~		
Parent			
Business Partners	~		
Description			
A place to store supplier information			
Max. 70 characters.			11
	Create another	Create	Cancel

All attributes are copied from the parent object type to the children. If you want to track more information in children object types, additional attributes are simple to include.

Select the **Vendors** object type, click on **Attributes**, and add another attribute.

arch object types Q	1	ŵ	Vendor A place to	13 some sendor information			Create	eblect Objects Attributes Graph Object to
iturers (S)	1			Name	Description	Type	Type Value	Additional Value
	0	1	87	Kay		Default	Text	
		1	68	 Name 	The name of the object	Default	Text	0
	Ŭ	5	59	Created		Default	Dute1me	
		2	70	Updated		Default	DuteTime	
		8	76	Dusiness Name	Dubiness full name	Default	Fext	0
		1	21	Account Manager	Overall account manager	Default	Tand	0
		5	12	Technical Account Manager	Technical account manager	Default	Text	0
		8	73	Customer Success Vanager	Customer success manager	Oxfault	Test	0
		5	27	Oustomer Support Contact	Customer support contact	Default	Test	0
		5	74	Account information	General account information	Default	Instatus	

Configure: Vendor Category

Configuring this attribute will modify its properties for both the current object type and all affected object types in this inheritance tree.

Gen	eral Options Cardinality	
		Add
	Advertisement	×
	Computer accessories	×
	Credit card	×
	Desktops and workstations	×
22 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	General construction	×
211 211 211 211	Insurance	×
	Monitors and projectors	×
	Networking equipment	×
	Notebooks and Tablets	×
	Office supplies	×
	Printers and scanners	×
	Professional services	×
	Servers	×
	Software	×
	Storage and backups	×

Update Cancel

Add your primary vendor data; additional supplier and vendor objects can be created when needed.

Create Object			
Object Type*	Avatar		
📅 Vendors 🗸 🗸		Choose a file	
Name			
Zones			
The name of the object			
Business Name			
Zones IT Solutions Inc			
Business full name			
Account Manager			
Firoz Lalji			
Overall account manager			
Technical Account Manager			
Steve Koenig			
Technical account manager			
Customer Success Manager			
Customer success manager			
Customer Support Contact			
800-408-9663			
Customer support contact			
Account Information			
https://www.zones.com/site/home/index.html			
General account information			
Vendor Category			
Desktops and workstations \sim			
Type of vendor			
	Create an	other Create	Cancel

Step 9 - Create an object schema for IT Assets

Now let's create an **IT Assets** object schema that will reference information in the **Employees** and **Manufacturer** object types.



Display the **Create object schema** window, enter object schema information, then configure the object schema to select *Allow others to select objects from this schema*.

Name •		
11 Assets		
Max. 50 characters.		
Key *		
ITASSET		
Max. 10 characters.		
Description		
A place to track IT hardware and software assets	and configurations	
Max. 80 characters.		
	Create	Cancel

Create object schema

Configure IT Assets

General Reference types Statu	ises Roles Import
You can edit the name and descrip	tion of your object schema here, as well as enable configuration options. Learn more about managing object schemas.
Id	n
Name	IT Assets
Description	A place to track IT hardware and software assets and configurations
Key	ITASSET
Number of object types	11
Number of objects	11
Created	12/Sep/22 4:36 PM

General configuration

Enable quick creation of referenced objects
 Validate objects attributes in quick object creation
 Allow others to select objects from this schema

PRO TIP

The object schema key is a series of alphanumeric characters and identifies the data related to your object schema. You can enter a **Key** value for an object schema when you create the record; however, the data cannot be modified later.

Select the **Statues** option for Asset object schema and add options:

Name	Category	Description
Ordered	Inactive	Asset is ordered but not in stock
In Transit	Inactive	Asset is being transported
In Stock	Pending	Asset is in stock but not in use
In Use	Active	Asset is deployed and functioning
Retired	Inactive	Asset is deployed but no longer in use
Disposed	Inactive	Asset is disposed and removed from accounting records
Missing	Inactive	Asset is not found in its expected location

Create status

Name *		
In Use		
Max. 30 characters.		
Description		
Asset is deployed and in use		
Max. 255 characters.		
Category *		
Active		~
	Create	Cancel

Configure IT Assets

General Reference types Statuses Roles Import

A status in	dicates the state of an object. You can create, update and delete diff	ferent types of status for the current object schema here. Learn more about statuses.		
				Create a status
Id	Name	Description	Category	Actions
8	Disposed	Asset is disposed and removed from accounting records	Inactive	Delete
9	In Stock	Asset is stored in a stockroom or maintenance room but not in use	Pending	Delete
10	In Transit	Asset is being transported	Inactive	Delete
11	In Use	Asset is deployed and in use	Active	Delete
12	Missing	Asset is not found in its expected location	Inactive	Delete
10	Ordered	Asset is ordered but not in stock	inactive	Delete
14	Retired	Asset is deployed but no longer in use	Inactive	Delete

PRO TIP

This use case is focusing on status values for assets; however, **Assets** can extend functionality as the organization's needs change and grow. For example, additional status values (or use existing values) can be included to track asset/CI operational statuses and link the value to discovery operations.

Step 10 - Create an object type for Hardware

Create Object Type			
Name*			
Hardware			
Max. 50 characters.			
lcon*			
📘 Workstation	~		
Parent			
🛇 None	~		
Description			
A place to store IT hardware			
Max. 70 characters.			
	Create another	Create	Cancel

Create an object type for hardware and configure the object type with Pass all attributes to child object types and Set this object as abstract

General Roles	Inheritance
Inheritance allow	s you to automatically pass attributes from parent object types to child object types. Learn more about inheritance.
🕑 Pass all attrib	outes to child object types. Learn more about inheritance.
Set this obje	ct as abstract. Learn more about abstract object types.

Select the **Attributes** option for Hardware object type and add the following items:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Asset Tag	Default	Text	
Serial Number	Default	Text	
Model Name	Default	Text	
Model ID	Default	Text	
Location	Default	Text	
Manufacturer	Object	Manufacturers	Referece
Vendor	Object	Vendors	Link
PO Number	Default	Text	
Invoice Number	Default	Text	
Unit Price	Default	Text	
Lease Contract	Default	Text	
Maintenance Contract	Default	Text	
Purchase Date	Default	Date	
Refresh Date	Default	Date	
Last Scan Date/Time	Default	DateTime	

Asset Status	Status	Ordered In Transit In Stock In Use Missing Retired Disposed	
Operational Status	Status	Running Stopped	
Assigned User	Object	Employees	Assigned To

Search object types 0,	-	Handwa A piece to	0/0 atom /f tandware			Cro	electional Objects Attributes	Graph Object lys
	1	м	Marter	Description	Тури	Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	78	Exy		Default	Text		
	0	79	 Asset Name 	The same of the asset	Default	feet		0
		80	Created		Default	DateTime		
		81	Updated		Default	DateTime		
		104	Asset Tay	Asset tag number	Default	fext.		0
		82	Serial Number	Asset serial number	Default	feet.		0
		83	Model Name	Asset model name	Default	Text		0
		04	Model ID	Asset model ID	Default	Text		0
		110	Location	Asset location	Default	Text:		0
		85	Manufacturer	Asset manufacturer	Object	Manufacturers	Reference	0
		106	Vendlar	Assot distributor	Object	💎 Vendora	Link	0
		104	PO Namber	Purchase order number	Default	Text.		0
		112	Invoice Number	Invide number	Default	fext		0
		109	Linit Frice	Asset price	Default	Integer		0
		110	Lease Contract	Leese contract ID	Default	Text		0
		113	Maintenance Contract	Maintenance centract ID	Detault	fect		0
		85	Install Date	Asset installation date	Default	Date		0
		87	Refeast Date	Asset w/resh/upgrade date	Default	Date		0
		115	Last Scan Date/Time	Last datafilms the asset was detected by discovery or monitoring toxis	Default	putetime		0
		113	Acset Status	Status of the asset	Status	DESPOSED DESIGNED IN TRANS	1	0
		116	Operational Status	Status of the asset/configuration item functionality	Status	BUNNING ETOPHID		0
			Assigned User	Name of employee who is assigned the asset	Object v	1 Employees	 Assigned Tol 	¥ A01

For the **Name** attribute, update the name data to "Asset Name."

Click the **cog icon** and configure the **Asset Tag**, and **Serial Number** attributes to be unique, so you avoid duplicate asset data.

L Hardware	1	Hards	NBFB to store /7 hardware				Create object. Objects Attribut	Graph Object typ
	- 2	ы	Name	Description	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	28	Key		Default	Text		
	0	79	 Assel Name 	The name of the asset.	Default	Text		0
		80	Created		Default	DateTime		
			Updated		Default	DateTime		
		104	Asset Tag	Asset tag number	Deraut	164		0
			Secul Number	Abet senar number	Derwit	Text		0
		83	Model Name	Asset model name	Default	Seut		0
		84	Model D	Asset model D	Default	Text		0
		118	Location	Asset location	Default	Text		0
		85	Manufacturer	Asset manufacturer	Otsect	Manufacturers	Reference	0
		105	Vendor	Asset distributor	Object	💎 Vendora	Link	0
		106	PO Number	Purchase order number	Definit	Text		0
		112	Invoice Number	Invoice number	Default	Text		0
		109	Unit Price	Asset price	Default	integer		0
		110	Leese Contract	Lease contract ID	Default	Text		0
		1 111	Maintenance Contract	Maintenance contract ID	Default	Text		0
			Install Date	Asset installation date	Default	Date		0
		82	Refresh Date	Asset refresh/upgrade date	Default	Date		0
		115	Last Scan Oate/Time	Last date/time the asset was detected by discovery or monitoring tools	Default	DateTime		0
		1 113	Asset Status	Status of the asset	Status	CHARGE CHARGE IN THE	AST ACT ACT ACT ACT ACT ACT ACT ACT ACT AC	0
		116	Operational Status	Status of the asset/configuration item functionality	Status	EURONING STOPPED		0
		1 119	Assigned User	Name of employee who is assigned the asset	Object v	1 Employees	u Assigned To v	Update Cancel

Configure: Serial Number





For **Unit Price** attribute, configure the suffix to include a currency symbol.

Configure: Unit Price General Cardinality Suffix \$ Unique [] Show sum [] (i)



For the **Assigned User** attribute, you use an existing reference value or enter a new reference value; simply click on the item to enter the new value.

PRO TIP

Although this use case does not include software IT assets, we can copy and update the Hardware object type for future use managing software assets.

Copy the Hardware object type and create a new object type for Software.

Search object types Q	1	Hardwar A place to a	RB Nore IT hardware			Create obje	Chjects Attribute	Graph Object type
	1	ы	Name	Description	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	Copy
	0	28	Key		Default	Sext		Delete
	0	70 9	Asset Name	The name of the asset	Default	Text		
		40	Created		Default	Datellime		+ Create
		81	updated		Default	Datefime		
		104	Asset Tag	Assett tag number	Default	Separt		0
		#2	Serial Number	Asset serial number	Default	Text		¢
		83	Model Name	Asset model name	Default	Text		0
		44	Model ID	Asset model ID	Default	Text		0
		118	Location	Asset location	Default	Text		0
		45	Manufacturer	Assett manufacturer	Object	Manufacturers	Reference	0
		105	Vendor	Asset distributor	Object	T Vendors	Link.	0
		106	PO Number	Purchase order number	Default	Text		0
		112	Invoice Number	Invoice number	Default	Text		0
		109	Unit Price	Asset price	Default	Integer		0
		110	Lease Contract	Lease contract ID	Default	Text		0
		111	Maintenance Contract	Maintenance contract (D	Default	Text		0
		86	Install Data	Asset installation-data	Default	Date		0
		87	Refrech Date	Asset refresh/upprade date	Default	Date		0
		115	Last Scan Date/Time	Last date/time the asset was detected by discovery or monitoring tools	Default	Datefilme		0
		112	Asset Status	Etatus of the asset	Status	DESPOSED SECTION IN TRANSPT		٥
		116	Operational Status	Status of the asset/configuration item functionality	Status	SCAMERO STOPPED		0
		120	Assigned User	Name of employee who is assigned the asset	Object	1 Employees	Assigned To	0

Copy Object Type: Hardware

Copy as		
Software		
Max. 50 characters.		
	Сору	Cancel

Configure the Software object type and update the **Icon** and **Description** values.

IT Assets	of software acco	ets and configurations			Search objects	• Overview	Oraph Object schema v
Dearth object types ()). El Harbour Giffhour	•	Software + page 4 mont f sufferer		No objects created. Impusible to unues discus due to the current object type is advance.	Counte adapt	Collipson Antributes	Create Child type + Create Create Create
		Configure Soft	tware				
		General Roles Inher	ritance				
		Select a field to enter d	letails about you	object type. Learn more about ob	ject types.		
		ID	30				
		Name	Software				
		lcon	😜 Software B	Box			
		Description	A place to store	e IT software			

Select the **Attributes** option for Software object type and include relevant options and delete any unnecessary items:

Name	Туре	Value	Additional Value
Title	Default	Text	
Version	Default	Text	Default
Patch	Default	Text	
Manufacturer	Object	Manufacturers	Reference
Vendor	Object	Vendors	Link
Product Key	Default	Text	
PO Number	Default	Text	
Invoice Number	Default	Text	
Contract	Default	Text	
Maintenance Contract	Default	Text	
GA Date	Default	Date	
Maintenance Renewal Date	Default	Date	
EOS Date	Default	Date	
Last Scan Date/Time	Default	DateTime	
Asset Status	Status	Ordered In Use	
Operational Status	Status	Running Stopped	
Assigned User	Object	Employees	Assigned To

Search object types G,		l s	ftware				One	the objects Attributes	Graph Object type v
Software		M 101 104	•	Name Koy Aosat Name	Description The name of the asset	Type Default Default	Type Value Text Text	Additional Value	0
	Ĭ	167 168		Created Updated	Entherem annut Ola	Default Default	DateTime DateTime Text		
		172		Version Petch	Suffixiere asset version Suffixiere asset patch level	Default	Text		0
		175		stanufacturer Vendor	Asset manufacturer Asset distributor	Object	Manufacturers Vendors	Reference	0
		211		Product Key PO Number	Asset software key Purchase order number	Default Default	Text Text		0
		177		Invoice Number Contract	Invoice number Software contract ID	Default	Text Text		0
		100		Maintenance Contract GA Dute	Maintenance contract ID Date asset is available for purchase	Default	Text Date		0
		184		Maintenance Renewal Cate ECM Cate	Date maintenance contract expires	Default	Date Date		0
		102		Last Scan Date/Time Assat Status	and or support pare for asser. Last datafilme the asset was detected by discovery or monitoring looks Status of the asset	Default	CuteTime	17040	0
		105		Operational Status	Status of the assetpoint/guration item functionality Name of employee who is assigned the asset	Status	Automatical STORAD	Automat To	0

Step 11 - Create an object type for Laptops

Create an object type for Laptops and select Hardware as the Parent.

Laptops		
Max. 50 characters.		
lcon		
💷 Laptop	~	
Parent		
Hardware	~	
Description		
A place to store laptop information		
Max. 70 characters.		//

Create Object Type

There is no need to add or modify any attributes because the data was copied from the parent object type.

h object types Q.	1		Lapto	IPS to store liphup information			Cree	Resident Objects Athilades 0	raph Object type
Laptops	1		м	Name	Description	Type	Type Value	Additional Value	
	0	1	78	Key		Default	Text		
	0	- 1	79	Asset Name	The name of the asset	Default	Texet		0
		71	80	Created		Default	Oatellime		
		2	81	Updated		Default	DateTime		
		4	104	Asset Tag	Asset tag number	Default	Test		0
		4	82	Sierial Number	Accet certal number	Default	Text		0
		8	85	Model Name	Asset model name	Default	Text		0
		8	84	Model ID	Asset model ID	Defeult	Text		0
		8	110	Location	Asset location	Perieut	Text		0
		1	#5	Manufacturer	Asset manufacturer	Otject	d Manufacturers	Reference	0
		5	105	Vendor	Asset distributor	Object	T Vendors	Link	0
		1	106	PQ Number	Purchase order number	Default	Text		0
		1	112	Invoice Number	Invoice number	Default	Text		0
		1	109	Unit Price	Asset price	Default	integer		0
		1	110	Lease Contract	Lease contract ID	Default	Text		8
		1	115	Maintenance Contract	Maintenance contract ID	Default	Text		0
		1	85	Install Date	Asset installation date	Default	Date		ó
		- 11	82	Refresh Date	Asset refreshjupgrade date	Default	Date		ò
		. 1	115	Last Scan Date/Time	Last datafilme the asset was detected by discovery or monitoring tools	Onlinuit	Dateflime		0
		3	113	Asset Status	Status of the asset	Status	DISACORD IN UTILINE IN TRANS	an use	0
			116	Operational Status	Blakus of the asset/configuration item functionality	Status	RUNAMED STOPPED		0
									0

Additional object types can be created for Desktop Software and Applications, when needed.

Step 12 - Configure the IT Assets object schema to import laptop data

Update the attached **laptop.csv** file and change the **Assigned User** data to match your Jira users.

Q Search all	I schemas for objects			
Object schema	s		+	Recent objects
រះ Business	Partners (BP)	5 objects		Apple
ង្ខ Employee	es (EM)	3 objects		2 Jennifer Fish
ts Facilities	(FAC)	4 objects		Atlassian
ង IT Assets	(ITASSET)	0 objects		View more
ਿ Services	(SVC)	Configuratio	on	
		Delete		



() View history Create import

Select the Import option, then click Create import

Select CSV import type and click Next

	Import type	Define structure	
Define import stru	cture		
lame •			
Laptop import			
Description			
Laptop import			
to be a dia dia ana ana ata			
Dpload a file or import da Upload a file from vo	ta ur computer		
E Laptops.csv			×
Import data from a w	eb address		
Automatically crea	te object types and attr	ributes	
Disabling this option requ	ires you to manually ma	ap your data to your schema b	efore importing
lata. Learn more.			
 More options 			
			Back Create

Enter a name for the import and select your CSV file.

Deselect *Automatically create object types and attributes* because you have already defined the **Laptops** object type and attributes. There is no need to update the additional options.

Click **Create**

Configure IT Assets	
General Reference types Statuses Roles import	
Imports are a way to bring outside data into insight and automatically convert it into insight object types, objects, attributes and references. Learn more about imports	
	③ View history Create import
ov Lapta Inport	(8454848) Import data •••• Edit mapping •
Maaring Define the object types that will map your data	Create mapping

Select Edit mapping

Click Create mapping

Create object type mapping

To create objects from imported data, select an objects type and configure how the data will be mapped. Learn more about object type mapping

Object Type *	
🔲 Laptops	
Hardware	
Laptops	
🗳 Software	
Case sensitive	v
Missing objects •	
Ignore	~
Missing objects outbound	d reference:
Ignore	~
Empty values •	
Use default	~
Unknown values •	
Use default	~

IT ASSET AND CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT HANDBOOK FOR ITSM

Create

Cancel
Select Laptops object type and click **Create**.

Select **Edit attributes mapping**, add data from source file mapping to attributes.



Create the attribute mappings for relevant items :

Data source field	Destination attribute	AQL
Name	Asset Name	
Asset Tag	Asset Tag	
Serial Number	Serial Number	
Status	Asset Status	
Manufacturer	Manufacturer	Name=\${Manufacturer}
Vendor	Vendor	Name=\${Vendor}
Model Name	Model Name	
Model ID	Model ID	
PO	PO Number	
Invoice	Invoice Number	
Price	Unit Price	
Purchase Date	Purchase Date	
Refresh Date	Refresh Date	
Assigned User	Assigned User	Name=\${Assigned User}

For the **Manufacturer**, **Vendor**, and **Assigned User** mapping, you want to create a relationship between the laptop data and the data you created earlier. The AQL syntax is Attribute=\${Name of placeholder}; the placeholder is the column label in the external data source.

Def	rano ine the object type	s that will map your data						+ 01	reats mapping
	LAPROD4						3638635 ····	Ecit artributes m	apping -
	Cech dete source Identifier	feid will be mapped to a destination object type attribute. Data source field	->	Destination attribute	AGA	Concatenator	Regular expression	face 64	
		Name	+	Asset Name					Delete
		Asset Tag	→	Asset Tag					Delete
	[-]	Serial Namber	→	Serial Number					Delete
		Status	→	Asset Status					Delete
		Manufacturer	→	Manufacturer	Name=5(Manufacturer)				Delete
		Windor	→	Vendor	Name=5(zendor)				Delete
		Model Name	+	Model Name					Delete
		Model ID	→	Medal ID					Delete
		P0	→	PC Number					Delete
		molce	→	Invoice Number					Delete
		Price	+	Unit Price					Delete
		Purchase Data	<i>→</i>	Purchase Date					Delate
		Refrech Date	<i>→</i>	Refresh Date					Delete
		Accinent Liter	+	declared liter	Name-Efficience(Liter)				Delete

Select **Serial Number** as unique identifier.

Select **Enable** to activate the attribute mapping.

Configure IT A:	ssets							
General Reference ty	pes Statuses Roles Import							
Importa are a wey to bri	ng eutside dets into Assets and automatically convert it into Ass	ita object type	a, objects, attributes and references. Learn more about impor	Ь			() View hist	ory Create import
Laptop impor	n 26, 2922 Aved on alls.					manual in	eert data 🚥	Edit mapping *
MAPPING Define the object ty	pes that will map your data						1	+ Create mapping
Laptopa						DEALID	Edit attribute	e mapping .
Each data sour	te field will be mapped to a destination object type attribute. Data source field	<i>→</i>	Destination attribute	Adl	Constenanor	Erative Edit object type mapping Regular express Delete	Ress & C	
	Name	+	Asset Name					Delete
	Asset Tay	->	Asset Tag					Delete
•	Serial Number	->	Serial Number					Delete
	Status	•	Asset Status					Delete
	Manufacturer	->	Merulacturer	Name-B(Manufacturer)				Delete
	vendor	+	vendor	Name:#(Verdor)				Delete
	Model Name	+	Model Name					Delete
	Model ID	->	Model D					Delete

Configure IT Assets

							() View histo	bry Create impo
Lastinge	port ri. Dvi 26, 2022 Annei decella.					DIAM	Import data ····	Edit mapping ~
LAPPING Define the object	Lypes that will map your data							+ Create mapping
Lapra	ра 						ute tát atvibute	is mapping in
Lach cara s	curve field will be mapped to a destination object type a	Eribute.						
Mertifier	Data source field	<i>→</i>	Destination attribute	AQL.	Concativination	Regular expression	Base 64	
	Name	+	Asset Name					Delete
	Asset Tag	+	Asset Tay					Delete
	Serial Number	•	Serial Number					Delete
	Distus	+	Asset Status					Delete
	Manufacturer	→	Manufacturer	Name-\$(Manufacturer)				Delete
	Versdur	->	Versdor	Name=B(Vendar)				Delete
0	Model Name	+	Micdel Name					Delete
O "Lapt	opa" has been successfully enabled H							

Select **Edit import structure** and save the import structure.

Configure I	T Assets							
Oeneral Refere	celypes Statuses Roles Import							
Imports are a way	to bring outside data into Assets and automatic	ally corvert it into Assets object types	objects, attributes and references. Learn	more about imports			() View history	Create Import
In Lapton Last In	impert geoti Cet 26, 2002, fixed detain .					DEARLIE	Import data	Edit mapping A
Define the ob	not types that will map your data						Vew str	ucture status
	phops					040.0	Edit attributes o	mapping .
Each dat	a source field will be mapped to a destination of Dela source field	ject type attribute. -9	Destination athibute	AQ.	Concelenator	Regular expression	Bear 04	
	Name	+	Asset Name					Delete
	Asset Tag	+	Asset Tag					Delete
۵	Serial Number	+	Serial Number					Delete
	Satur	•	Asset Status					Delere
	Manufacturer	•	Manufacturer	Namer&Manufacture/				Delete

Define import structure

Laptop import	
escription	
Jpload a file or import data	
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer 	
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer 	
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv 	×
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv 	×
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv Import data from a web address 	×
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv Import data from a web address 	×
Outpload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv Import data from a web address More options	×
 Upload a file or import data Upload a file from your computer Laptops.csv Import data from a web address More options 	×

The data is now ready to import, so click **Import data**.

Confi	gure IT As	ssots							
General	Reference typ	pes Statuces Roles Import							
mports a	re a way to bry	ng outside data into Assets and automatically convert it into Asse	ts object type	is, objects, attributes and references. Learn more about imp	DITS.				
								© Vew histo	Create import
-	Laptop import	t bri 28, 2012. Annad distalin .					BEADY TO BUN	Import data	Edit mapping *
NAPO	***								Create mapping
Cela	e the object typ	pes that will map your data							
	Laptopa						INALL	Ecit attribute	mapping +
	Each data seur	ce feid will be mapped to a destination object type attribute.							
	Identifier	Cara storte field	+	Destination attribute	AQ.	Concationator	Regular expression	Ease 64	
		Refresh Date	+	Refresh Date					Delete
		Assigned User	+	Ausigned User	Name=\$(Assigned User)				Delete
		Name	*	Asset Name					Dulete
		Asset Tag	+	Asset Tag					Delete
		Serial Number	+	Senal Number					Dalete
		Status	+	Asset Status					Delete
		Manufacturer	*	Manufacturer	Name=\$(Manufacturer)				Delete

When the data import is complete, click **Read details** to view the results.

Laptop import import details

Result	FINISHED	
Actor	(F) Jennifer Fish	
Module key	rlabs-import-type-csv	
Configuration id	b0fb250c-a3ab-49ab-a34b-2791837cfd4d	
Duration	3.09 seconds	
Laptops		^
Number of entries	10	
Duplicate objects	0	
Objects with no identifier in external source	0	
Objects missing a label	0	
Created objects	10	
Updated objects	0	
Missing objects deleted	0	
Missing objects updated	0	
Objects with updated references	10	
Identical objects	0	
Objects filtered	0	
Time reading data	8 ms	

The laptop data is now available.

Close

Search object types G	1		Laptops	laptice information												Courses	tjeet Objects	Attributes	Graph Ot	Sect type -
Laptops (10) Software	1	FID	er Search + 9,	Advanced														25	- 0	ev =:
	•	1-1	10 of 10 S											invite						Columns
		1	Kay	Asset Name %	Created	Updated	Asset Tag	Serial Humber	Model Name	Model ID	Manufacturer	Vendor	Pő Number	Number	Unit Price	Purchase Bale	Refresh Date	Asset Status	Assigned 0	Juse .
			TASSET-64	AT-8022101	26/Oct/22 4:37 PM	26/0cl/22 4:37 PM	AT-B022101	COZOSENEMALE	MacBook Pro MNQ02LLJA 13-inch Laptop	MacBookPro13;	Apple	Tones .	30161-4	NV7109-4550	1299 \$	13/Sep/21	No Value	DISPOSED	No Value	0
			ITASSET-65	E AT- 8022102	26/0ct/22 4:37 PM	26/0ct/22 4:37 PM	AT-8022102	C02G8W9E9EC	MacBook Pro MNQG2LL/A 13-inch Laptop	MacBookPro13.	Accie	#Zones	30161-4	INV7109-4550	1399-5	13/Sep/21	No Value	DISPOSED	No Value	0
			ITASSET-66	E AT- 6022103	28/0±1/22 4-37 PM	26/0cl/22 4:37 PM	AT-8022103	С020нждо333	MacBook Pro MNQ02LL/A 13-inch Laptop	MacBookPro13,	ad Apple	Tones .	30161-4	NV7109-4550	1399 8	13/Sep/21	13/Sep/24	er utik	1 Jerriter Fish	0
			ITA55ET-67	@ AT-8042101	28/0ct/22 4:37 PM	26/0-cV22 4:37 PM	AT-8042101	C0203HNDDH7	MacBook Pro MNQG2LL/A 13-inch Lactop	MacBookPro13;	Apple	#Zones	32392-1	INV7109-5957	1399.8	10/Dec/21	10/Dec/24	84 USE	2 Blythe Smithaon	0
			ITASSET-68	E AT- B042102	26/Oct/22.4:37 PM	26/0c\/22.4/37 PM	AT-8042102	C020U2655KD	MacBook Pro MNQG2LL/A 13-inch Laptop	MacBookPro13;	Accile	#Zones	32932-1	INV7109-5957	1399.5	10/Dec/21	10/Dec/24	W STOCK	No Value	0
			ITASSET-69	E ATM- B022110	26/Oct(22.4:37 PM	26/0ct/22.4.37 PM	ATM-8022110	H887UD2H9CT	MacBook Pro with Apple M2 Chip	Mac14,7	Apple	Tones .	32395-2	INV7109-6092	1259-5	19/Jan/22	19(Jan(25	N STOCK	No Value	0
			10x5567-70	@ ATM- 8022111	26/0ct/22.4-37 PM	26/0ct/22.4:37 PM	ATM-0022111	H88790XH8AK	MacBook Pro with Apple M2 Chip	Mac14,7	-Apple	₩Zones	32395-2	INV7109-8092	1259 \$	19/Jan/22	19/Jan/25	IN STOCK	No Value	0
		-	ITA55ET-71	E ATM- 8042103	24/0ei(22.4:37 PM	26/0+/22 4:37 PM	ATM-8042103	C020E0C6N02	MacBook Pro with Apple M2 CNIS	Mac14,7	-Apple	#Zones	32419-1	PeV7109-8188	1259-8	01/Feb;22	01/Feb/25	84 USE	2 Jeramy Coolman	0
		-	ITASSET-72	E ATM-	26/Oct/22 4:37 PM	26/0et/22 4:37 PM	ATM-8111102	XYKEEBROUFF	ThinkPad E15 Gen 3	20HQ	Lenove	No Value	All Tallie	No Value	No Value	14/34/22	14/Jul/26	ALCORE.	No Value	0
			ITASSET-73	E ATM-	26/00/22 4:37	26/Oct/22 4 37	ATM-8111109	XYJM5E927K	ThirkPad E15	20HQ	Lenovo	No Value	No 19fue	No Value	No varue	14/20/22	14/Jul/25	IN STOCK	No Value	0

And linked to employees.

Jennifer Fish							
# Edit □ Comment More ~ (🖗 Object Graph 🔒 Back to O	ibject Type					
- Details						- Dates	
Name 🎙			1 Jennifer Fish			Created	25/Oct/22 10:46 AM
Atlassian Account ID			Jonnifer Fish			Updated	25/0ct/22 10:50 AM
Manager Name			2 Blythe Smithson			 Inbound References 	
Job Role			Content Specialist			O Laptops	
Email			(fish@atlassian.com			 Attachments 	
Location			ERemote Workspace				
Employment Type			Contractor				
v Activity Comments History						There are no attachments	
Created	Type	Actor	Attribute	Crid value	New value	Filter/Vinnesolved	
25/0ei/22 10:50 AM	Changed Value	🕑 Jenniker Fish	Email	fish@atlasslan.com	(fish@aflassian.com	No related issues found for specifi	ed Ameri
25/0ct/22 10:46 AM	Added Value	Jenniher Fish	Employment Type		Contractor		
25/0ct/22 10:46 AM	Created	B Jennifer Fish					

Step 13 - Create custom field to store laptop data in a request

Select the Jira Service Management cog icon and select **Issues**.

Assets Apps ~ Create		
Asset and configurati	on management	Configuration
Connect, track and manage the as and much more. Learn more about	sets that matter to your team - application service Assets	, infrastructure, hardware, people,
Q. Search all schemas for object	ts	
Object schemas		Recent objects
Object schemas	1	Recent objects
Object schemas	f objects ••••	2 Jennifer Fish
Object schemas	6 objects ••• 3 objects •••	Recent objects Jennifer Fish AT-B022103 Blythe Smithson
Object schemas	6 objects ••• 3 objects •••	Recent objects Jennifer Fish AT-B022103 Blythe Smithson Zones
Object schemas 12 Business Partners (BP) 12 Employees (EM) 12 Facilities (FAC)	6 objects ••• 3 objects ••• 4 objects •••	Recent objects Jennifer Fish AT-B022103 Blythe Smithson Zones Apple
Object schemas 12 Business Partners (BP) 12 Employees (EM) 12 Facilities (FAC) 12 IT Assets (ITASSET)	4 objects •••• 4 objects •••• 10 objects ••••	Recent objects Jennifer Fish AT-B022103 Blythe Smithson Zones Apple View more

Set	tings	
ATL	SSIAN ADMIN	
*	User management Add users, groups, and manage access requests.	Ľ
	Billing Update your billing details, manage your subscriptions and more.	C
JIRA	SETTINGS	
Ŷ	System Manage your general configuration, global permissions, look and feel and	more.
•	Products Manage your Jira products' settings and integrations.	
D	Projects Manage your project settings, categories, and more.	
9	Issues Configure your issue types, workflows, screens, custom fields and more.	
0	Apps Add and manage Jira Marketplace apps.	_
PERS	SONAL SETTINGS	
A	Atlassian account settings Manage your language, time zone, and other profile information.	Ľ

In the Issues types pane, select Custom fields then click Create custom field.

Issues	Custom fields		You	currently have 63 active custom fields Create custo	m field
New issue view transition	Active Trashed				
ISSUE TYPES	Filter by name or description Q				
Issue type hierarchy	Name :	Туре	Screens and contexts	Last used O	
Issue types	Actual end Enter when the change actually intend.	Dute Time Picker	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
issue type schemes	Actual start	O Date Time Picker	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
Sub-tasks	Enter when the change actuary interest.				
WORKFLOWS	Affected hardware	A9 Text Field (single line)	B screens, 1 context	No information	
Workflows	Affected services (LBEKER) Link services from the service registry to an issue.	? Unknown	16 screens, 1 context	Not tracked	
Workflow schemes	Approvals LOCKED	4 Approvals	1 context	Not tracked	
SCREENS	Provides search options for Jins Service Management approvals information. This custom field is created programmatically and required by Jins Servi-				
Screens	Approver groups Contains groups of users needed for approvel. This custom field was created by 3ra Service Management.	Shoup Picker (multiple groups)	8 screens, 1 context	No information	
Screen schemes	Approvers Contains users needed for approval. This custom field was created by Jins Service Desk.	Subser Picker (multiple users)	18 screens, 1 context	No information	
Issue type screen schemes	Backout plan	7 Text Field (multi-line)	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
Custom fields	Cutegory LOCKED Choose a calegory string a babud picker window.	? Unknown	None	Not tracked	
Field configurations	Change reason	Select List (single choice)	4 screens, 1 context	Oct 19, 2022	
Field configuration schemes	Choose the reason for the change request				
FORMS	Change risk	 Select List (single choice) 	4 screens, 1 context	Oct 19, 2022	
Data connections	Change type	Select List (single choice)	4 screens, 1 context	Oct 19, 2022	
ISSUE FEATURES	(CHART) Date of First Response	Las Date of First Response	1 context	Not tracked	
Time tracking					
Issue linking	[CHART] Time in Status	Time in Status	1 context	Not tracked	

In the **Select a Field Type** window, click **All**, select **Assets objects**, then click **Next**.

Configure 'Assets objects' Field	
Name*	
Affected Laptop(s)	
Description	
Employee laptop(s) affected by issue	
	1.

Previous	Create	Cancel

Enter **Name** data for the custom field and create the new field.

Configure 'Assets objects' Field		
Name*		
Affected Laptop(s)		
Description		
Employee laptop(s) affected by issue		
	Previous Create Cano	el

Search for your project and associate the new field to the request and incident screens in your project, then click **Update**.

Issues	Issues		
New issue view transition	Associate field Reason for new hardware to screens		
ISSUE TYPES	Associate the field Reason for new hardware to the appropriate screens. You must associate before it will be displayed. New fields will be added to the end of a tab.	e a field to a scre	en
Issue type hierarchy	ITSAMPLE		
Issue types	Screen	Tab	
Issue type schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management Screen	Default	
Sub-tasks	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Change Create Issue Screen	Default	
WORKFLOWS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Change View/Edit Screen	Default	
Workflows	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Incident Create Issue Screen	Default	v
Workflow schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Incident View/Edit Screen	Default	✓
SCREENS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Post-Incident Review Create Issue Screen	Default	
Caraane	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Post-Incident Review View/Edit Screen	Default	
Screens	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Problem Create Issue Screen	Default	
Screen schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Problem View/Edit Screen	Default	
Issue type screen schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Request Fulfilment Create Issue Screen	Default	
FIELDS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Request Fulfilment View/Edit Screen	Default	•
Custom fields			
Field configurations	Update		

In the **Custom fields** pane, search for the new field then update the **Context and default values**.

Custom fields		You currently have 73 a	active custom	fields Create custom field
Active Trashed				
affected				
Name :	Туре	Screens and contexts :	Last used : 🔞	•
Affected hardware	Aa Text Field (single line)	8 screens, 1 context	No informati	ion
Affected Laptop(s) Employee laptop(s) affected by issue	Le Assets objects	4 screens, 1 context	Not tracked	[
Affected services LOCKED Link services from the service registry to an issue.	? Unknown	16 screens, 1 context	Not tracked	Edit details Contexts and default value
				Translation options
				Associate to Screens
				Move to trash

Click **Edit Assets object/s field configuration** to update the configuration context.

Issues

Configure Custom Field	d: Affected Laptop(s)		0				
Below are the Custom Field Cor issues types in a particular cont global context. Moreover, projec	nfiguration schemes for this custom field. Sch text. You can configure a custom field differer ct level schemes will over-ride global ones.	emes are applicable ntly for each project	e for various context or in a				
 Add new context 							
View Custom Fields							
Default Configuration S	cheme for Affected Laptop(s)	Edit context	Delete context				
Default configuration scheme ge	enerated by Jira						
Applicable contexts for Ed	Edit Configuration						
scheme:	Issue type(s):						
	Global (all issues)						
Assets object/s field Edi	it Assets object/s field configuration						
Ob	ject schema: None						
Filt	ter scope (AQL): None						
Filt	ter issue scope (AQL): None						
All	ow search filtering by these attributes: No	ne					
Ob	ject attributes to display on issue view: No	one					
Fie	Field can store multiple objects: No						
Dis	splay a default object when this field appea	ars in a customer p	ortal: No				

Select IT Assets as the Object schema and enter objectType="Laptops" in the Filter scope (AQL) field.

To limit the data list to laptops assigned to the issue reporter, include "Assigned User"."Atlassian Account ID"=\${reporter} in the **Filter issue scope** field.

Include the relevant values in the **Allow search** filtering by these attributes field:

- Assigned User
- Asset Name

Include options in the **Object attributes to display on issue view** field:

- Asset Name
- Serial Number
- Assigned User
- Refresh Date
- Asset Status

Select Field can store multiple object.

Assets object/s field configuration - Affected Laptop(s) (customfield_10063)

Field scope		
Choose which object schema to use, and what filters to apply on the results shown when searching fi	or objects in th	ne field.
Object schema *		
IT Assets		~
Filter scope (AQL)		
objectType="Laptops"		
Filter Issue scope (AQL)		
"Assigned User"."Atlassian Account ID"=\${reporter}		
User interaction Configure how your field will function for users, and how it will display on the issue view. Allow search filtering by these attributes •		
Assigned User x Asset Name x		•
Object attributes to display on issue view		
Asset Name x Serial Number x Assigned User x Refresh Date x Asset Status x		•
Field can store multiple objects 🔍		
	Cancel	Save

Issues

Configure Custom Field: Affected Laptop(s)

Below are the Custom Field Configuration schemes for this custom field. Schemes are applicable for various issues types in a particular context. You can configure a custom field differently for each project context or in a global context. Moreover, project level schemes will over-ride global ones.

Add new context

View Custom Fields

Default Configuration	n Scheme for Affected Laptop(s) Edit context Delete cont						
Default configuration scheme	e generated by Jira						
Applicable contexts for scheme:	Edit Configuration Issue type(s): • Global (all issues)						
Assets object/s field configuration:	Edit Assets object/s field configuration Object schema: IT Assets						
	Filter scope (AQL): objectType="Laptops" Filter issue scope (AQL): "Assigned User"."Atlas Allow search filtering by these attributes: Assi Object attributes to display on issue view: Ass User Refresh Date. Asset Status	sian Account ID"=\$ gned User, Asset N et Name, Serial Nur	S{reporter} ame mber, Assigned				
	Field can store multiple objects: Yes Display a default object when this field appear	rs in a customer po	ortal: No				

The custom field is available in the specified project screens.

0

PRO TIP

AQL Basic syntax

The basic syntax of an AQL query is **<attribute> <operator> <value/ function>**. One or more objects is returned by the query when the attributes of these objects match the operator and value specified.

Example: Owner = "Ted Anderson"

This basic AQL query would return all objects for which the Owner is "Ted Anderson". Note the quotations around "Ted Anderson", since there is a space in the value name.

Dot notation

Dot notation is used in AQL to travel down a reference chain of objects. The format <attribute>.<attribute> <operator> <value/ function> will return information based upon objects referenced by the parent object.

Example: "Belongs to Department"."Name" = HR

In this case, the Employee object type has a referenced attribute called "Belongs to Department". This query returns all the Employees which belong to the HR department.

Note that since the referenced attribute contains spaces, it has been enclosed with a pair of double quotes.

Step 14 - Associate new custom fields with a project request

Select **Projects** option in the Jira Service Management main navigation bar and select **View all projects.**

🏭 💠 Jira	Service Management Your work ~	Projects V Filters V Dashboards V People V Assets	Apps ~ Create	Q. Search	* 0 0 💌
Projects		RECENT ITSM sample space (ITSAMPLE) Service project			Create project
	Q. All Jira products	ITSM project (IP)			
*	Name t	Service project	Туре	Lead	
	🚺 ITSM project	View all projects	Service management	🕖 Jennifer Fish	
ITSM sample space		Create project	Service management	🕖 Jennifer Fish	

Click on the **ellipse** icon and select **Project settings**.

III 💠 J	lira	Service M	anage	ment Your work	 Projects ~ 	Filters ~	Dashboards ~	People ~	Assets	Apps ~	Create		Q Search	+	0	٥	JF.
Proj	jec	ots												0	reate p	roject	
			Q	All Jira products	~												
*		Name *					Key				Туре	Lead :					
		🚺 ITSM	project				IP				Service management	Jennifer Fish					
		💡 ітям	sample	space			ITS/	AMPLE			Service management	🕖 Jennifer Fish				•••	
														Pro	ject se	ttings	1
														Mo	ve to tr	ash	
														Mo	ve to an	chive	

Select **Request types** in the **service project sidebar**, filter on **"hardware**" then click on **Request new hardware** link.



Locate the new custom field in the **Fields** pane, drag-and-drop the field to the **Request new hardware** form, click **Save**, then click **Preview** to see the updated request form.

ITSM sample space	Back to request types	view workflow کې	Fields	
	Request form Issue view Workflow statuses		System	
 Back to project settings 			Assignee	ISSUE VIEW
WORK CATEGORIES	Request new hardware Fields added to the request form are filled out by customers when they raise a req	uest from the portal. Learn more about the portal, or how	Labels	ISSUE VIEW
Service requests	to customize fields.		14 Priority	ISSUE VIEW
Incidents	Request type description ()		Other	
Problems	For example, a new mouse or monitor.		Affected Laptop(s)	ISSUE VIEW
Changes			Approvers	
Post-incident reviews	Instructions	>	Components	ISSUE VIEW
Unassigned	Ao Summary	REQUIRED >	T Linked Issues	
		Why do you need this? REQUIRED >		
		>		

...

Service project	 Back to request types 	"r" View workflow	Fields
	Request form issue view Workflow statuses		System
 Back to project settings 	Request new bardware		Assignee IBBUE VIEW
WORK CATEGORIES	Electracided to the request form are filled at the customers when	they raise a request from the parts. Learn more about the parts, or how	Labels IBBOE VIEW
Service requests	to customize fields.		Tu Priority ISBUE VIEW
Incidents	Request type description ①		Other
Problems	For example, a new mouse or monitor.		Approvers
Changes			Components ISSUE VIEW
Post-incident reviews	Instructions	>	Linked issues
Unassigned	As summary An summary An summary An subsection An summary Attachment	WORKING WORKING	
	📣 Give feedback	Discard Preview Save changes	Make existing fields available (2) Create new oustom fields [2] Refresh this page after adding or creating fields.

Help Center / ITSM sample space



Step 15 - Create automation for updating a laptop

With the **Affected laptop(s)** field associated with the **Request new hardware** form, you can create automation to update assets when requests are submitted. In this step, let's create another custom field and define the automation steps.

In the **Request new hardware** form window, click on the **Create new custom fields** link.

ITSM sample space Service project	Back to request types	"J" View v	workflow	Fields	
	Request form Issue view Workflow statuses			System	
Back to project settings	Request new hardware			Assignee Labels	ISSUE VIEW
WORK CATEGORIES	Fields added to the request form are filled out by customers when they raise a request from the	portal. Learn more about the portal	l, or how	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
Service requests	to customize fields.			ta Priority	ISSUE VIEW
Incidents	Request type description ①			Other	
Problems	For example, a new mouse or monitor.			Approvers	
Changes				Components	ISSUE VIEW
Post-incident reviews	Instructions		>	C Linked Issues	
Unassigned	Ao Summary	REQUIRED	>	Select	
	Affected Laptop(s)		>	Reason for new hardware	ISSUE VIEW
		Why do you need this? REQUIRED	>		
	@ Attachment		>		
				Make existing fields available 🖸	

In the **Custom fields** window, click the **Create custom field** button.

III 💠 Jira Service Manage	ment Your work - Projects - Filters - Dashboards - People - Assets Apps -	Create		Q Search	00
Issues	Custom fields		You currently	have 73 active custom fields Create	custom field
New issue view transition	Active Trashed				
ISSUE TYPES	Filter by name or description Q				
issue type hierarchy	Name	Type	Screens and contexts	Last used - O	
issue types	Actual end Enter when the change actually ended.	O Date Time Picker	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
Issue type schemes	Actual start	O Date Time Picker	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
Sub-tasks	Enter when the change actually started.				
WORKFLOWS	Affected hardware	Ac Text Field (single line)	8 screens, 1 context	No information	
Workflows	Affected Laptop(s) Employee lipito(s) affected by issue	皆 Assets objects	4 screens, 1 context	Not tracked	
Workflow schemes	Affected services (LOCKED)	? Unknown	16 screens, 1 context	Not tracked	
SCREENS	to a sector of the sector of the regard to an inter-				
Screens	Approvals LOCKED Provides search options for Jira Service Management approvals information. This custom field is created program	Approvais	1 contest	Not tracked	
Screen schemes	Approver groups Contains groups of users needed for approval. This custom field was created by Jia Sarvice Management.	Sroup Picker (multiple groups)	8 screens, 1 context	No information	
Issue type screen schemes		2+ These Dickes (multiple supers)	21 errores 1 context	Neinformation	
FIELDS	Contains users needed for approval. This custom field was created by Jira Service Desk.		23 5010010, 1001000		
Custom fields	Backout plan	Text Field (multi-line)	4 screens, 1 context	No information	
Field configurations	Category LOCKED	? Unknown	None	Not tracked	
Field configuration schemes	Choose a category using a popup picker window.				
FORMS	Change reason Choose the reason for the change request	Select List (single choice)	4 screens, 1 context	Nov 2, 2022	

In the **Select a Field Type** window, search on "**select**", select **Select List (single choice)**, then click **Next**.

Select a Field Type		Q select	
All Standard	1 \$ 2 \$	Select List (cascading) Choose multiple values using two select lists.	
Advanced	Option 1 Option 2	Select List (multiple choices) Choose multiple values in a select list.	
[Select \$	Select List (single choice) A single select list with a configurable list of options.	
			ext Cancel

In the **Configure 'Select List (single choice)' Field** window, enter **Name** and **Options** data for the custom field, then create the new field.

lame			
Reason for new hardware			
escription			
Reason for new hardware re	quest		
			4
ptions			
		Add	
Asset lost or stolen	×	Add	

Create	Cancel
	Create

Search for your project and associate the new field to the request and incident screens in your project, then click **Update**.

Issues	Issues		
New issue view transition	Associate field Reason for new hardware to screens		
ISSUE TYPES	Associate the field Reason for new hardware to the appropriate screens. You must associ before it will be displayed. New fields will be added to the end of a tab.	ate a field to a scre	een
Issue type hierarchy	ITSAMPLE		
Issue types	Sataon	Tab	
Issue type schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management Screen	Default	
Sub-tasks	TSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Change Create Issue Screen	Default	
WORKFLOWS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Change View/Edit Screen	Default	
Workflows	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Incident Create Issue Screen	Default	
Workflow schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Incident View/Edit Screen	Default	
SCREENS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Post-Incident Review Create Issue Screen	Default	
Screens	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Post-Incident Review View/Edit Screen	Default	
	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Problem Create Issue Screen	Default	
Screen schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Problem View/Edit Screen	Default	
Issue type screen schemes	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Request Fulfilment Create Issue Screen	Default	•
FIELDS	ITSAMPLE: Jira Service Management: Request Fulfilment View/Edit Screen	Default	•
Custom fields			
Field configurations	Cancel		

Return to the **Request new hardware** window, drag-and-drop the new field to the form, click **Save**, then click **Preview** to see the updated request form.

III 🆩 Jira Service Management Your V	ork v Projects v Filters v Dashboards v People v Assets Apps v Create		Q. Search 🖉 🖗 🕐 🕐
ITSM sample space Service project	Back to request types	\mathcal{J}^{*} View workflow	Fields
Back to project settings	Request form Issue view Workflow statuses		Dystem C Assignee ISSUE VIEW
WORK CATEGORIES Service requests	Fields added to the request form are filled out by customers when they raise a request from the portail. Le to customize fields.	im more about the portal, or how	Labels ISSUE VIEW the Priority ISSUE VIEW
Incidents Problems	Request type description 🔿 For example, a new mouse or mentor.		Other Approvers
Changes Post-incident reviews	F Instructions	3	Components ISSUE VIEW
Unassigned	As Summary	REQUIRED >	Edeot Reason for new hardware INSERT XIEW
	E Description Why do you	need this? REQUIRED >	
You're in a company-managed project	e ⁴⁵ Olive feecback Disca	d Preview Save changes	Create new custom fields [2] Create new custom fields [2] Refresh this page after adding or creating fields.

ITSM sample space	Back to request types		J* View workflow	Fields	
-	Request form Issue view Workflow statuses			System	
 Back to project settings 	Paquest new bardware			Assignee	ISSUE VIEW
WORK CATEGORIES				Labels	ISSUE VIEW
Service requests	to customize fields.	en they raise a request from the portal, Learn more accut	the portal, or now	12 Priority	ISSUE VIEW
Incidents	Request type description ③			Other	
Problems	For example, a new mouse or monitor.			Approvers	
Changes				Components	HERUE VIEW
Post-incident reviews	Instructions		>	E Linked Issues	
Unassigned	An Summary		< canvoar		
	Reason for new hardware		>		
	Affected Laptop(s)		>		
		Why do you need this?	Cantogat		
			>		
				Make existing fields available 🕑	1
You're in a company-managed project		Discard Preview	Save changes	Create new custom fields 🕑 Refresh this page after adding o	or creating fields.

Help Center / ITSM sample space		
Request new hardware		
Raise this request on behalf of*		
🕑 Jennifer Fish (jfish@atlassian.com)	0	~
Summary*		
Laptop missing		
Reason for new hardware		
Asset lost or stolen	0	~
Affected Laptop(s)		
AT-B022103 Jennifer Fish ×	0	~
Why do you need this?*		
Normal text × B I ··· A × :≡ ≔ 8 @ @ ↔ 9 55 -		
Museum halos late and the laster was stated from the build		
wy car was broken into and the laptop was siblen from the trunk		
Attachment		
Drag and drop files, paste screenshots, or browse		
Browse		
Send Cancel		

Select your project from the Jira Service Management main navigation bar then select **Project settings** in the **service project sidebar.**

🏭 💠 Jira Service Manag	ement Your work - Projects - Filte	ers v Dashboards v People	~ Assets Apps ~ Create				Q. Search	f Q C 🔵
ITSM sample space Service project	Projects / ITSM sa All open tick	mple space (ITSAMPLE) roject						<u>ن</u> ۵۰۰
Ø Problems	Request Ty Request Ty	aject (IP) roject		Reporter	Assignee	Status	Created	Time to resolution
Changes	O Report View all project	ts	network difficulties experience	Anonymous	() Unassigned	PENDING V	01/Nov/22	2 Nov 11:57 AM ()
D Post-incident revie	Create project) into VPN	Jie Yan Song	O Unassigned	PENDINO	01/Nov/22	2 Nov 11:57 AM ()
OPERATIONS	honen							
Change calendar	Report a system problem	ITSAMPLE-14 404 error re	turning on customer announcements page	Jie Yan Song	Unassigned	OPEN	01/Nov/22	2 Nov 11:57 AM 🕥
-C Services	Report a system problem	ITSAMPLE-11 Unable to p	ocess customer payments	Alana Hansen	Unassigned	WORK IN PROGRESS	02/Nov/22	3 Nov 11:57 AM ()
△ Alerts		Detables Of	PD analysis and an electronic	Owner Dankers	0			
for On-call	B Request a change	ITSAMPLE-9 Patching CI	CD security vulnerability	Omar Darboe	O Unassigned	REVIEW	30/Oct/22	
6 on can	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-8 Deployment	42 for "Open-webstore: default" to Production	Automation Bot	Unassigned	IMPLEMENTING	30/Oct/22	
KNOWLEDGE	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-7 Deployment	18 for "Commerce platform: default" to Production	Automation Bot	O Unassigned	IMPLEMENTING	31/Oct/22	
E Knowledge base	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-6 EC2 Down -	US West fix	Alana Hansen	O Unassigned	IMPLEMENTING	02/Nov/22	
kel Reports	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-5 Production	system upgrade	Alana Hansen	O Unassigned	PLANNING	29/Oct/22	
CHANNELS & PEOPLE	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-4 Upgrade to	Sydney VPN	Anonymous	Unassigned	AUTHORIZE	02/Nov/22	
Channels	Request a change	ITSAMPLE-3 Open webs	ore VMware weekly update	Mia Ricci	O Unassigned	AWAITING IMPLEMENTATION	29/Oct/22	
Customers	22 Investigate a	ITSAMPLE-2 Trends of h	gher counts of send mail 404 error with SMTP server	Anonymous		OPEN	29/Oct/22	
Linvite team	problem	in past mon	h		0			
SHORTCUTS	X Investigate a problem	ITSAMPLE-1 Investigatin	a recurring Sydney VPN access errors in last 60 days	Anonymous	O Unassigned	OPEN	02/Nov/22	
C1 Add shortout								

Select **Automation**, then click the **Create** rule button.

O Project settings

ITSM sample space Service project	Projects / ITSM sample space / Project : Automation	Projects / ITSM sample space / Project settings Automation G						
 Back to project 	# Rules ② Audit log ① Library							
Forms								
Change management	Automate any task or process wit	th a few clicks			•			
Incident management	Let Automation take care of the busyw focus on work that matters. Create you rules, or browse our rules library to get	ork, so your team can ur own automation t started				🥑 🕂 💽 🗼		
Customer permissions	Tures, or promise our rules notely to ge					· ·		
Language support	IT Service Management							
Portal settings								
Email requests		† → ື.	∲ → °Ն	◆ →				
Customer notifications								
Widget	When an issue is created →	Resolve issues due to inactivity	When a customer comments on a closed request \rightarrow then regions the	Set organization using reporter's	When SLA threshold is about to breach at then add comment to	When a comment is added ->		
Chat	balanced workload		request	ernan domain	notify assignee	aposte tre status		
Satisfaction settings								
Knowledge base								
SLAs								
Automation								
Apps	Prompt customer for comment							
Workflows								
Screens								

In the New trigger pane, select Issue Created, then click Save.



In the Add component pane, click New condition.



In the New Condition pane, select Issue fields condition.

Automation	NEW					
Rule details		$\overline{\pm}$	New co	ondition 🐨		
			Actions w	vill only execute if all conditions prec	eding t	them pass.
+ When: Issue created			Reco	ommended		
If: New condition	created.		x;	Issue fields condition Check whether an issue's field meets a certain criteria POPULAR		
scope of your rule.	the		All co	omponents		
Add component			0	Advanced compare condition Compares two values: ((issue.status.name)) equals Done	6'8	Affected services conditio Check if the affected servic field matches certain criteri
			Q	AQL condition Checks whether the rule matches the query condition.		Forms attached Check if an issue has forms attached.
			-¢	If / else block Perform different actions using if, else-if and else to control the flow.	0	Issue attachments Checks if issue attachment exist or don't exist
			X.	Issue fields condition Check whether an issue's field meets a certain criteria	Q	JQL condition Checks if issue matches JQ
			Ø	Related issues condition Check if related issues exist or match JQL.	۲	User condition User matches criteria: Reporter in group 'custome

In the **Issue fields condition pane**, enter the following data then click the **Save** button.

Field	Condition		Value
Request Type	equals		Request new hardware
Projects / ITSM sample space / Project settings Automation		X Issue fields conditio Checks whether an issue's Field • Request Type Condition * equals Value Field	n 🐨 field meets a certain criteria. Learn more.
In the Add component p Projects / ITSM sample space / Project settings Automation	ane , click New o	condition.	Cancel
 Rule details When: Issue created Rule is run when an issue is created. Request Type equals Request new hardware Add component 		Add components Components can either restri branching on related issues.	ection of this ctions and ritems.

In the New condition pane, click Issue fields condition.

Project	s / ITSM sample space / Project sett	ngs				
Aut	omation NEW					
٩	Rule details		New co	ondition T	erfina	tham nace
•	When: Issue created Rule is run when an Issue is created.		Reco	Issue fields condition Check whether an issue's field meets a certain criteria	county	uren pess.
	Request Type equals Request new hardware		All c	omponents		
Ŧ	And: New condition Select a condition to narrow the scope of your rule.		0	Advanced compare condition Compares two values: {(issue.status.name}) equals Done	66	Affected services condition Check if the affected services field matches certain criteria
	Add component		Q	AQL condition Checks whether the rule matches the query condition.		Forms attached Check if an issue has forms attached.

In the Issue fields condition pane, select the custom asset field and enter Condition data, then click Save.

Field	Condition
Affected Laptop(s)	is not empty

In the Add component pane, select New condition.



In the **Issue fields condition pane**, select the custom field and enter **Condition** data, then click **Save**.

Field	Condition	Value
Reason for new hardware	equals	Asset lost or stolen

PRO TIP

Triggers are a powerful tool for keeping your Jira issues synchronized with **Assets** data. It is recommended that you configure triggers within individual project automation (rather than globally) and define specific conditions to ensure the automation rule works reliably and only in expected conditions.

In the **Add component** pane, select **New action**, filter on "**attribute**", then select **Edit Assets field** attributes.

C	Rule details	✓ New action	
•	When: Issue created Rule is run when an issue is created.	All components v attribute	
x	Request Type equals Request new hardware	Edit Assets field attributes Update certain Assets field attribute values.	
X	Affected Laptop(s) is not empty	> Get automation tips from the community	Cancel
×	Reason for new hardware equals Asset lost or stolen		
•	Then: New action Select an action to perform.		

In the **Edit Assets field attributes** pane, **Affected Laptop(s)** is pre-populated as the **Asset Field** value, so click on the **Choose attribute to set** link, then select **Asset Status**.



Enter **Missing** in the **Asset Status** field and click **Save**.

0	Rule details	1	Edit Assets field attributes 🐨
+	When: issue created		Set values for attributes on a certain Assets field. Select the Assets field and add the attributes you want to edit.
	Rule is run when an issue is created.		You can add either a string value, an object id or a smart value in the field.
x	Request Type equals		Assets field •
	Request new hardware		Affected Laptop(s) V
25	Affected Laptop(s) is not		Choose attributes to set v
	empty		Asset Status
20	Reason for new hardware		Missing
Ĩ	equals. Asset lost or stolen		Cancel Save
	Then: Edit Assets field attributes Asset Status		

In the **New component** pane, select **New action**, filter on **"comment, "** then select **Comment on issue**.

Projec	ts / ITSM sample space / Project	settings					
Au	tomation	w					
0	Rule details		*	New action The Actions perform changes to a s	wstem		
+	When: Issue created Rule is run when an issue is create	s		All components 🗸	comment		
×	Request Type equals Request new hardware			C Comment on issue Add a comment to a	in issue.	 Delete comment Remove a comment from an issue 	
×	Affected Laptop(s) is not empty			C Edit comment Edit a comment on a	an issue.		
х	Reason for new hardware equals Asset lost or stolen			> Get automation tips from the	he community		Cancel
	Then: Edit Assets field attributes Asset Status						
•							
•	And: New action Select an action to perform.						
	Add component						

In the **Comment on issue** pane, enter an informational message, ensure the **checkbox** for *Prevent duplicates by only adding this comment once to a particular issue* is selected, select **Share with customer** in the **Comment Visibility** field, then click **Save**.

Comment

{panel:title=INFO|borderStyle=dashed|borderColor=#ccc|titleBGColor=#F7D6C1| bgColor=#FFFFCE}The stolen/lost laptop '{{issue.fields.Affected Laptop(s)}}' wa s | updated in the IT Assets schema and the Asset Status is set to Missing{panel}



PRO TIP

You can create more detailed, informative messages by including Jira smart values. Smart values are placeholders that let you pull in dynamic data. You can use them to access and manipulate almost any issue data from Jira.

For more information, visit the following link:

Jira smart values - issues | Cloud automation Cloud | Atlassian Support

The automation rule is complete, so add a name for the automation and click **Turn it on**.



Step 16 - Create a request for an employee laptop

Now you can create a request for an employee and select the employee's laptop. Access your customer portal by selecting **Channels** in the **service project sidebar** and clicking **Help Center/Open**. In the Help Center, search for "new hardware", and select **Request new hardware** in your project.

🗄 💠 Jira Service Monagement 👋	fourwork - Project	- filters - Dashboard	- People- Au	arts Apps - Create				Q Search	₽ 0 0 (
TSM sample space Service project	Projec All	open tickets	All tickets						۵····
Comunica Comunica		Request Type	Key	Summery	Reporter	Assignee	Status	Created	Time to resolution #
Service requests		() Report a system	TRAVELE-13	VPN outspichetwork difficulties experience	Aronymous	() Crassigned	MINDING u	18/0et/22	19 Det 10-52 AV
Incidents		problem							
Problems		③ Report a system problem	(TSAMPLE-13	Unable to kig into YPN	Jie Yan Song	O Unassigned	PENDING	18/005/22	19 Det 10 52 AM
Changes		Beport a system problem	TSAMPLE-54	404 error returning an oustomer announcements page	Jie Yan Song	e transport	OPEN.	18/0et/22	19 Oct 10-52 AM
Post-incident reviews		Report a system	TIAMPLE-II	Unable to process customer payments	Alana Hansen	e crassioned	WORK IN PRODUCTS	18/06522	20 Oct 10:52 AM
ecos		present				0			
Change calendar		E Bequest a change	TSAMPLE-9	Patieting O/CD security valverability	Omar Darboe	() crasspos	REFER	16/06622	
familian		E Request a change	TEAMPLE-8	Deployment 42 for "Open-webstore: default" to Production	Automation Bot	() Unassigned	IMPLOVENTING	16/04/22	
		E Request a change	(TEAMPLE-2	Deployment 10 for "Commerce platform: dolault" to Production	Automation Bot	() Unassigned	IMPLEMENTING	17/Oct/22	
Alers		E Request & change	TSAMPLE-6	ECZ Down - US West fix	Alana Hansen	() unangres	IMPLEMENTING	19/06/22	
Cr-cal		E Request a change	TEAMPLE-5	Production system upgrade	Alana Hansen	O crassigned	PLANNED	15/04/(22	
URDER				Lipprade to Sydney VPN	Aronymous	() unassigned	AUTHORIZE	18/Oct/22	
Knowledge base	Chann	els		Open webstore VMware weekly update	Mia Flicci	O Unanigned	ANATINE INFLEMENTATION	15/0et/22	
Reports	*	(MAL Esample/Basset-config.atta	stan net	Trends of higher courts of send mail 404 error with SWTP server in past	Aronymous	O crasspes	OPEN	15/065/22	
Channels		HER CINTR MIN (Sent-corfig stands	.ret/serviced	Investigating recurring Sudney VPN access errors in last 60 days	Araynas	() crassianed	OPEN .	18/0ct/22	
Customers	_	702501							
the local diversion of		Turned off							
server space		0487							
nours	-								
Add shortcut									
Project settings									

Hulp Center			Requests (F
	Welcome to the Help Center	٩	Conterior
Portais			
	ITSM sample space Welcome! You can raise a request for ITSM sample space using the options previded.	ITSM project Welcomet You can naise a request for ITSM project using the options provided.	
	Ferrand by dy-Jac	Service Management	

new hardware

		Request new hardware to ITSM project	7
- [Ţ	Request new hardware to ITSM sample space	8

Enter information in the **Summary** field, select **"Asset lost or stolen"** in the **Reason for new hardware** field, select an **Affected Laptop(s)** value, enter information in the **Why do you need this?** field, then click the **Send** button.

Help Center / ITSM sample space	
Equest new hardware	
Raise this request on behalf of*	
Jennifer Fish (jfish@atlassian.com)	0 •
Summary*	
My laptop was stolen and I need another laptop	
Reason for new hardware	
Asset lost or stolen	⊙ •
Affected Laptop(s)	
Search for Assets objects	Ŷ
1 SEARCH RESULT	
Jennifer Fish	
Atlachment	
Drag and drop files, paste screenshots, or browse	
Browse	
Send Cancel	

Help Center / ITSM sample space / ITSAMPLE-25

My laptop was stolen and I need another laptop



You can view the issue by selecting the issue ID and see the request details, note about the asset record update, SLAs for issue response and resolution, etc. Additionally, you can click on the asset field **Show details** toggle and see that the **Asset Status** is set to **Missing**.

My lanton was stolen and I need another lanton				
my leptop was stolen and meeta another leptop		Waiting for support ~		
Create subtasik Ø Link Issue		51.64		
	Hide datais	14 Nov 05:00 PM 11 Today 06:09 PM -V Prined Reids Click on the & next to a Details Assignee Reporter	Time to issolution within 85 Time to thin response within 45 feld label to east pinning.	×
Tours and an an and the second		Request Type Priority Labels Request participants Organizations	Request new hardware Medium None None	
Atohiy Shaa Al Comment History Weaking Agenerativ Additional data / Balayis Constraint Ref By and State An	Howest feat 2	Astonation More Selds Ursence, tro Dreated 8 minutes ago Updated 9 minutes ago	Particle Product Categories Rule executions act, Fending reason, Product Categories	Cion, Operati ~
		A standards A standards A standards	s.de s	A set for a first and the regards If the decision If the decision

Appendix

Checklist of next steps

This list is designed as a high-level overview of next steps to take when embarking on your ITAM and service configuration management journey. By starting small and focused, organizations can implement a valuable asset and/or configuration system in just a few months.

Build your business case

- Pick a current business problem that will deliver value to the business if solved. We recommend starting to solve just one or two problems for the first iteration of asset and service configuration management.
- □ Assemble a team to tackle this problem. The team members you choose will depend heavily on the business problem.
- □ Consider which teams interact with the problem area and pull stakeholders from each relevant team.
- □ Choose a sponsor from your organization who is responsible for the outcomes you're trying to improve.
- □ Ensure everyone has the same understanding of IT asset and service configuration management.
- Outline the business problem in detail, how asset and/or service configuration management can help overcome it, and the business outcomes that it will lead to.
- □ Define your goals such as reducing mean time to resolve by 10% or increasing customer satisfaction by 15%.
- □ Build a business case using the problem statement and goals to get buy-in from stakeholders and budget approval.

Understand what data you need

- □ Understand what information you need to solve your chosen problem.
- □ List relevant asset and CI categories (e.g. laptops, servers, databases) and what information (attributes) you need to know about each category.
- □ Understand where that information is located today (e.g. spreadsheets, in people's heads, external databases).
- Decide what data to leave in its current tool and what should be moved entirely into the CMDB. It's definitely time to leave those spreadsheets behind.
- □ Understand which integrations to third party tools or file imports you will need based on the above.
- □ Understand how often data is changed to inform how often integrations need to run to keep your CMDB up to date.
- □ Understand if any governance, compliance, or audit requirements are required.
- Do a final check. Does every piece of data have a purpose? If not, remove it.

Implement

- □ Carry out any relevant product training for your team members that will be building, maintaining, and interacting with your chosen tool.
- □ Learn about data modeling best practices. There are plenty of resources available, even in-depth YouTube lectures.
- □ Map out the structure you want on paper or a whiteboard. Ensure that your chosen structure can support the access permissions you require.
- □ Import data and organize it according to your plan. Integrate your assets and CIs with your service desk.
- □ Set up relevant automation rules to keep data up to date. Trial and iterate.
- □ Audit data periodically to keep it up to date.
- □ Select the next problem to solve and continue expanding.

Whether you're already in the Atlassian ecosystem or you're making a switch from legacy CMDB tools, *Assets* in Jira Service Management can help you modernize your asset and service configuration management practices.

To take the next steps in your modernization reach out to your local Atlassian Solution Partner today.





p: 720-379-4070 | **w**: t4spartners.com | **e**: info@T4SPartners.com 7935 E Prentice Ave., Suite 400, Greenwood Village, CO 80111



